
WASHINGTON STATE 
GAMBLING COMMISSION PUBLIC 

MEETING - September 8, 2022
Washington State Liquor and Cannabus Board 

Olympia , WA 



COMMISSIONERS

EX OFFICIOS

Alicia Levy 
Chair

Julia Patterson
Vice Chair

Bud Sizemore

Senator
Steve Conway

Representative
Shelley Kloba

Representative
Brandon Vick

Washington State Gambling Commission
P.O. Box 42400 | Olympia, WA 98504-2400
(360) 486-3469 | (800) 345-2529 | www.wsgc.wa.gov

WAGamblingCommission WAGambling

wagambling

Senator
Je� Holy

Kristine Reeves Sarah Lawson 



1 
 

  
STATE OF WASHINGTON  

GAMBLING COMMISSION  
                 “Protect the Public by Ensuring that Gambling is Legal and Honest”   

Gambling Commission Meeting Agenda 
Thursday, September 8, 2022 

Meeting will be held virtually through Teams and in person at the  
Washington State Liquor and Cannabis Board  
1025 Union Avenue SE Olympia, WA 98501 

To join the meeting virtually through TEAMS Click here  
Please note, agenda times are estimates only.  Items may be taken out of sequence at the discretion of the Chair.  

Commissioners may take action on business items. 
Administrative Procedures Act Proceedings are identified by an asterisk (*)  

  
Thursday, September 8, 2022 

PUBLIC MEETING  
8:30 AM “Meet the WSGC staff” 

                                                                                                                               Tina Griffin, Director 
                                                                                                                Chris Wilson, Deputy Director 
                                                                                                       Gary Drumheller, Assistant Director 
                                                                                                            Julie Lies, Tribal Liaison 
                                                                                    Jim Nicks, Agent in Charge (Regulation) 
                                                              Dan Wegenast, Agent in Charge (Tribal Gaming Unit) 
                                                                            Jennifer LaMont, Agent in Charge (Licensing) 
                                                                                          Jamie Doughty, Administrator (EGL)  

9:30 AM 
Tab 1 

 

Call to Order                                                                                                 Alicia Levy, Chair  
                                       
*Consent agenda                                                                                                           (Action) 

• August 11&12, 2022, Commission Meeting Minutes 
• “Correction” to July 25, 2022, Special Commission Meeting Minutes 
• New Licenses and Class III Employees 
• Non-profit officer working in multiple organizations 
• Sports Wagering Vendor Reports 
• November Meeting Location 

Public Comment 
Director’s Report 
                                                                                                                      Tina Griffin, Director 
 

Tab 2 Agency Request Legislation 2023                                                                             (Action) 
                                                                                  Tommy Oakes, Interim Legislative Liaison 
Public Comment 

Tab 3 Presentation – Problem Gambling Task Force                                                           
                                                           Roxane Waldron, Problem Gambling Program Manager              

 Public Comment can be provided via:  
• Email before the start of the meeting on September 8, 2022, to askus@wsgc.wa.gov  
• Microsoft Office Teams Chat Box.  
• By phone; or 

https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_NTg3MzAxOWQtNGE0MS00YzcwLTllNzYtNjc2MjhhMjE3NmJi%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%2211d0e217-264e-400a-8ba0-57dcc127d72d%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22a1facef7-8fd9-4a6e-b4e9-1fabd6fbe994%22%7d
mailto:askus@wsgc.wa.gov


2 
 

• In person. 

 Executive Session – Closed to the Public                                                 
To discuss current and potential agency litigation with legal counsel, including tribal 
negotiations. 

 Adjourn 
Upon advance request, the Commission will pursue reasonable accommodations to enable persons with disabilities to attend Commission meetings. 

Questions or comments pertaining to the agenda, rule changes and requests for special accommodations should be directed to Julie Anderson,  
Executive Assistant at (360) 486-3453 or TDD (360) 486-363. If you would like to submit public comment via email, please submit them to 

askus@wsgc.wa.gov 
Please silence your cell phones and mute your mics for the public meeting 

 

mailto:askus@wsgc.wa.gov


 

 
STATE OF WASHINGTON 

GAMBLING COMMISSION 
“Protect the Public by Ensuring that Gambling is Legal and Honest”  

 
1 
 

August Gambling Commission Meeting Minutes 
Hybrid Meeting  
*August 11, 2022 

 
Commissioners Present:                                      
Chair Alicia Levy  
Vice Chair Julia Patterson  
Bud Sizemore  
Kristine Reeves (Via Teams) 
Sarah Lawson (Via Teams) 

Ex Officio Members Present:  
Senator Steve Conway (Via Teams) 
Representative Shelley Kloba (Via Teams) 

 
Staff Present: 
Tina Griffin, Director; Tommy Oakes, Interim Legislative Liaison (ILL); Suzanne Becker, 
Assistant Attorney General (AAG); Julie Anderson 
 
Staff Present Virtually: 
Julie Lies, Tribal Liaison; Jess Lohse, Acting Rules Coordinator (ARC) 
 
Chair Levy called the virtual meeting to order at 9:33AM and mentioned that TVW would be 
livestreaming the meeting. Director Griffin called the roll to confirm a quorum.  
 
There were 11 people in the audience and 56 people virtually.  
 
Tab 1 
Consent Agenda  
Chair Levy asked commissioners if they had any changes to the consent agenda. They did not.   
 
Public Comment:  
Chair Levy asked for public comment. There was none. 
 
Commissioner Sizemore moved to approve the consent agenda as presented by staff.  
Commissioner Patterson seconded the motion. 
The motion passed. 5:0 
 
Director’s Report  
Director Griffin explained the restructure of the agency will occur once the deputy director and 
assistant director are hired. She stated that the Deputy Director’s position was posted for 
recruitment on July 15th and closed August 8th. The agency received 29 applications. Interviews 
are schedule for the 15th and 16th, with second interviews occurring the following week. The 
Assistant Director recruitment will begin once the deputy director is on board. She also gave an 
accounting of the other leadership positions needed and the anticipated timelines of hiring. 
Lastly, she mentioned the new segment to the commission meeting lineup that is slated to begin 
in September called “Meet the WSGC staff”. This segment of the meeting will be from 8:30-9:15 



2 
 

AM.  Managers of operational and support units will be available to answer questions. Director 
Griffin invited Commissioners as well.   
 
 
Tab 2 
Presentation – Confederated Tribes and Bands of the Yakama Nation 
The Honorable Virgil Lewis Sr., Vice Chair of the Yakama Nation, Tina Griffin; Director and 
Julie Lies, Tribal Liaison (TL) presented the materials for this tab. The Honorable Chairman 
Delano Saluskin was unable to attend so Vice Chair Virgil Lewis Sr. presented. The Honorable 
Virgil Lewis Sr. thanked the Commissioners and staff for their work and gave a brief history 
about the Yakama Nation. TL Lies provided a summary and a detailed account of the compact 
changes to the Tribe’s Amendment.  

Commissioner Sizemore asked Vice Chair Lewis if he could describe who has benefited from 
their casino’s work. Vice Chair Lewis explained that they have provided $1.9 million to buy 
supplies and fire trucks for the local fire department and $1.7 million to local sheriff for the city 
of Toppenish Police Department.  
 
Senator Conway thanked the Yakama Nation for a great presentation. He also asked if he could 
speak to the $1.5 million in problem gambling contributions. Vice Chair Lewis stated, “As a 
nation, we recognize problem gambling and always encourage a healthy and safe way of 
gambling. Our programs and services are put in place to assist problem gamblers. The goal of 
our program is to assist with reducing the negative impact problem gambling can have on our 
community. Tribal Gaming Agency has a self-exclusion regulation that ensures compliance at 
our facility. Our tribal gaming agents are trained on self-exclusion. They are trained to monitor, 
recognize signs of problem gambling, and process the self-exclusions. This year we have had 61 
applications placed on self-exclusion. We have a total of 200 customers on the self-exclusion list. 
We had 220 customers on the self-exclusion list in '21. Yakama Nation problem gambling hosts 
public events annually to provide public awareness for responsible gaming. The program 
currently is servicing five clients and has an average between three and 10 clients, patients on 
annual basis. We provide services not only to the parents, but to the families as well”.  
 
Public Comment 
Chair Levy asked for public comment.  
 
Nanci Watson stated, “My question was about the financial support for problem gambling. One 
thing we've been discussing in the problem gambling task force is that some tribes provide 
counseling and other services to people experiencing a problem with problem gambling, and 
they open it up to any citizen of the State of Washington. But we do understand that not every 
tribe is in a position to offer those types of services. What I was curious about is looking at the 
amount of money you're contributing, how much of that is available to pay for direct services to 
people who have a problem with gambling”? Vice Chair Lewis reiterated that $1.5 million 
dollars is available to problem gambling, and that the Yakama Nation authorized the full amount 
to problem gambling. He also said that the program is not strictly for the Yakama Nation 
members or tribes but is open to anyone. Nanci Watson followed up by asking if the funds were 



3 
 

administered through the behavioral health organization for the tribe. Vice Chair Lewis replied 
yes.  
Vice Chair Patterson asked TL Lies to confirm the criteria for the high limit room regarding the 
amendment. TL Lies reiterated the criteria that would be looked at and explained that we have 
not worked out the specifics with the tribe until they are ready to offer the higher limits.  
 
Vice Chair Patterson asked staff about how effective the tribe’s pre-screening process is; prior 
to people being allowed in to play the high limit games and asked what the process looks like. 
She also asked staff to provide the commissioners with details associated with this topic in the 
future.   
There was no further public comments. 
 
Commissioner Patterson moved to forward the proposed compact amendment to the governor 
for review and final execution.   
Commissioner Lawson seconded the motion. 
The motion passed 7:0 

Tab 3 
Boys & Girls Club of the Columbia Basin 
Brian Lane, Special Agent (SA), Kim Pope, Boys & Girls Club Executive Director (EA) 
and Deanne Clune, Raffle Chairperson presented the materials for this tab. SA Lane 
explained the process and stated that the Boys & Girls Club of Columbia Basin, located in Moses 
Lake, reached out to the Gambling Commission with questions regarding a fundraising idea 
involving a house raffle. They found a builder who would be willing to give them favorable 
terms on a house and they drafted their raffle proposal. The Boys & Girls Club of the Columbia 
Basin requests approval to offer a raffle prize in excess of  $40,000 and offer raffle prizes over 
$300,000. They are estimating the house build costs to be $250,000 with a  FMV of $400,000.  
SA Lane explained that the cost and estimated value may fluctuate between the time of the 
request and the date of the drawing in July of 2023. SA Lane introduced Executive Director 
(ED) Kim Pope to the commissioners. ED Pope thanked the commission and spoke about the 
program. She introduced Deanne Klune who is the House Raffle Committee Chair. Ms. Klune 
presented the proposal to the commission.  
 
Chair Levy asked Commissioners if they had any questions.  
 
Commissioner Reeves thanked all the presenters. She also asked Ms. Klune about the 
demographic population that the Boys & Girls Club of Moses Lake serves in the area. Ms. 
Klune referred to her presentation and said, “We really want everyone to be aware of the 
children that we serve and the availability that we have to have more capacity if possible”. 
Director Griffin clarified for the record that the Boys & Girls Club are not seeking an enhanced 
raffle license as stated by Ms. Klune during her presentation, but rather a license to raffle a prize 
over $40,000 and cumulative prizes over $300,000 in their license year.   
 
Chair Levy asked Commissioners if they had any questions. They had none. 
 



4 
 

Public Comment 
Chair Levy asked for public comment. There were none. 
 
Commissioner Sizemore moved to approve the Boys & Girls Club of the Columbia Basin to 
conduct a house raffle as presented by staff.    
Commissioner Lawson seconded the motion. 
The motion passed 5:0 

Commissioners took a 10-minute break 
After the break Director Griffin called the roll and verified there was a quorum of 
Commissioners. 
 
Tab 4 
Pull-Tab Inventory Control 
Jess Lohse, Acting Rules Coordinator (ARC) and Taek Kim, Petitioner, presented the 
materials for this tab. ARC Lohse explained that Taek Kim, owner of Meeker St Bar & Grill in 
Kent, Washington is proposing to amend WAC 230-14-260 to no longer require licensed pull-tab 
operators to write the date they put a pull-tab series in play on the purchase invoice.  The 
petitioner specifically wants to strike subsection (2) (b) of WAC 230-14-260.     
The petitioner feels this change is needed because the requirement to write the date they place 
every pull-tab series in play on purchase invoices adds additional hardships for operators who do 
not use pull-tab point of sale/inventory systems.  The petitioner noted that many operators 
already write the “date in play” information on the flare of the game or other separate tracking 
records after they place games in play.  The petitioner feels that writing the date in play 
information also on the purchase invoices is duplication and not efficient. Mr. Kim thanked the 
commissioners and reiterated his concerns.  
 
Staff recommends initiating rule-making proceedings for further discussion.  
 
Chair Levy asked Commissioners if they had any questions.  
Commissioner Sizemore asked Mr. Kim if he fully understood that should the Commissioners 
agree to rule-making and proceed for further discussion that the petition would then become the 
Commission’s petition. Mr. Kim understood.  
Commissioner Reeves asked how many pull-tab licensees this rule change would affect. 
Director Griffin replied, possibly 500 or more. She added not knowing exactly how many 
licensees have POS systems.  
 
Public Comment 
Chair Levy asked for public comment. There were none. 
 
Commissioner Patterson moved to initiate rule-making proceedings as proposed for further 
discussion.  
Commissioner Sizemore seconded the motion.  
The motion passed. 5:0 
 



5 
 

Tab 5 
Petition for Rule Change – Wager Limits for House-Banked Card Games 
Jess Lohse, Action Rules Coordinator, Eric Persson, CEO, Maverick Gaming and Vicki 
Christophersen, representing Maverick Gaming presented the materials for this tab. ARC 
Lohse explained that the petitioner is proposing to amend WAC 230-15-140 by increasing the 
maximum single wagering limit from $300 to $500 for all house-banked gaming tables.  
Provided that if the licensee has a “high limit room” they may increase the single wagering limit 
to $1,000 for a select number of high limit tables. The petitioner feels this change is needed to 
reflect current economic conditions and customer demand; and wagering limits have not been 
increased since 2009 and operating costs have increased significantly since then; and minimum 
wage has nearly doubled since 2009 and supply chain issues and inflation has had a negative 
impact on card room revenue; and to keep the wagering limits for card rooms fair and consistent 
with competitors, specifically Tribal casinos.  Tribal compacts have been steadily amended to 
increase wagering limits at their casinos. The petitioner feels the effect of this rule change will 
allow house-banked card rooms to compete on a more level playing field with Tribal casinos.  
The petitioner also believes the rule change will allow for the preservation of family wage jobs 
and economic contributions to the communities they are part of.  Lastly, the petitioner feels that 
the rule change will provide increased tax collection for the local jurisdictions they operate 
house-banked card rooms in. The petitioner's not looking to add more than 15 tables, rather as 
they noted in their petition, they're looking at increasing the wagering limits from $300 to $500 
with the ability to go up to 1,000 for a select number of tables. House bank card rooms opened in 
1997, where wagering limits for games were set at $25. In 2000, wagering limits increased to 
$100, and 2004 to $200. And lastly, in 2009, the current limit of $300. In 2016, the commission 
received a petition from the recreational gaming association, requesting the commission to 
increase wagering limits to $500 that would match the limit of tribal gaming operations at the 
time. The commission accepted the petition for further discussion, but the RGA eventually 
withdrew their request after hearing some commissioner concerns. In January 2022, the 
commission received a petition from Tim Merrill with Maverick Gaming, requesting the 
commission to increase waging limits from $300 to $500 with the ability to raise it to $1,000 on 
25% of the tables, but the petition was withdrawn by Tim Merrill prior to the Commissioners 
taking any action. Staff feels that additional rule-making will be needed to address policy 
concerns, new definitions, and possible new requirements. 

Vicki Christophersen and Eric Persson were delayed a few minutes. Chair Levy suggested 
hearing tab 6 before tab 5.  

Commissioner Patterson asked Director Griffin if she or staff could remind her why 
Commissioners had concerns in 2016 over the then proposed wager limits. And possibly provide 
a more detailed summary of the discussion points prior to the petitioner withdrawing their 
petition in 2016. Director Griffin replied she would get back to her after re-reading the 
transcripts from that meeting.  

Tab 6 
Agency Request Legislation for 2023 
Tommy Oakes, Interim Legislative Liaison (ILL) presented the materials for this tab. ILL 
Oakes presented an update on staff’s work on agency request legislation. He explained that 



6 
 

promotional contest of chance would not be able to go forward because of the amount of work 
needed when short staffed. He also said that the proposed law enforcement bill is moving well 
and can be considered for agency request legislation.  
 
Chair Levy asked Commissioners if they had any questions.  
Commissioner Reeves asked if ILL Oakes had any insight on any potential legislation coming 
forward to give commissioners a heads up. ILL Oakes said potentially a couple rule petitions 
regarding licenses at two different locations. Director Griffin added, CJTC's potential expansion 
of campuses. 
Senator Conway commented on the locations of the campuses. He hopes that CJTC takes into 
consideration Thurston-Pierce County area and Kitsap area as areas to expand their training 
centers.   
 
Tab 5 continued 
Petition for Rule Change – Wager Limits for House-Banked Card Games 
At this time Chair Levy asked Petitioners from tab 5 if they were ready for their presentation. 
Vicki Christophersen and Eric Persson presented a PowerPoint outlining their petition.  
 
Chair Levy asked Commissioners if they had any questions.  
Commissioner Patterson asked the petitioner about the problem gambling task force, and that 
the current amount being invested is not adequate to meet the needs in order to treat people with 
addictions. She asked the petitioner if he would be cooperative if the state legislature asks for an 
increase of investment should that increase occur. Eric Persson agreed.   Representative Kloba 
asked Mr. Persson about the names of his casino’s and if they were foreign LLCs. Mr. Persson 
assured Representative Kloba that all 27 casinos are based in the United States. The parent 
company is located in Kirkland. 
Commissioner Lawson asked the petitioner if the house-banked card rooms were allowed to 
keep food and beverage prices low by subsidizing it with the increased wager limits where 
everyone else that's also a restaurant that doesn't have the card room experience available in their 
restaurant is having to raise their prices anyway. And, she said card games are meant to be a 
commercial stimulant. But the information that she was seeing looked more like it is that the 
wager limit is not being asked of us to stimulate your food and beverage business. It's being 
asked to offset the costs or to subsidize your food and beverage business, which she doesn't think 
is the intent of the legislation RCW 9.46. Ms. Christophersen explained that 13 years ago the 
commission adjusted the rate based on economics of the business and we’re back after 13 years 
again to ask the commission to adjust the rate again. Mr. Persson stated, food and beverage 
prices, have increased over 20% year over year, subsidizing. That's one of the areas in our 
business where we're able to charge more for beer or charge more for the food that we get. What 
we need is more people in the building who then will buy food and buy alcohol and spend more 
time in our facility. And so, you can't just charge more to a gamer who comes to gamble because 
they get to choose the amount that they want to wage. And you also can't just arbitrarily change 
the rules, so you just take people's money faster. One, it would destroy the gaming experience, 
you'd probably lose your customers anyway. But two, you must have obviously a fair game for 
your consumer. So, by allowing a particular small segment of customers to bet more who want to 



7 
 

bet more, we expect to see an overall lift corresponding to the seven and a half percent increase 
in our food and beverage as well throughout our home facility.  

 
Senator Conway asked staff to look at the history of when and how wager limits were raised for 
house-banked card rooms. 
Commissioner Reeves asked the petitioner to explain what he meant by inflation and raising the 
wager limit. Also, asked him about the tier one, tier two, and tier three supplier economic impact. 
She said, “It seems to me like somewhere along the line, we shifted from really focusing on that 
restaurant retail, organizational base with a supplementary card room, or card activity, punch 
boards, whatever, to now actually having a full-blown gambling industry. So, kind of a second 
tier, if you will. And I would love for staff as we go through this rule making process to identify 
those establishments that really market themselves as card rooms first versus the establishments 
that market themselves as bars. And an example, I use, I have a small local establishment that I 
go into in Federal Way called Scoreboard. And it markets itself as a restaurant bar retail space. 
It does not necessarily publicly market, "Come here for punch boards, et cetera." But when you 
go into the establishment, you then find there are punch boards and other gambling activities 
that you can participate in. Whereas I think about places like the Silver Dollar or others where 
they're absolutely marketing themselves as a gambling establishment first, and then you go in 
and you can find out you can have Coke and Pepsi and all that good stuff. So, I guess I would 
really like to also use this rule making process to more distinctly where that division between 
restaurant and retail with a supplementary gambling activity versus a gambling activity with a 
supplementary restaurant in retail. Because I think that distinction needs to get made somewhere 
in this rulemaking process as a determination for how we're driving economic output and 
regulation around economic output in the conversation.” Ms. Christophersen answered the 
question by saying, “I think we view this again as the beginning of a conversation and have 
provided some basic information around wage increases, inflation, cost of goods. So, all those 
things as part of the basis for asking the commission to move forward with this conversation. 
Everything you're talking about and the details that need to be explored further, that's exactly 
what we hope we can embark on with staff and with the commissioners and all stakeholders as 
we hopefully go forward with the rule making conversation. So, appreciate all those. I think 
they're good questions.” Commissioner Sizemore stated, “In my mind, the rationale to initiate 
rule making is that the last time it was raised was 13 or 14 years ago. So that, in my mind, is 
probably adequate for us to take a look at the topic. I look at our legislative declaration that 
talks about limiting the nature and scope of gambling activities by strict regulation and control.” 
And he said, “I am supportive of going ahead and initiating this rule making, but for me, to be 
convinced it's going to require fitting within our legislative declaration and for the legislature to 
essentially indicate that they're supportive that we're still within our statute. And I think that the 
legislature has done that to this point because they haven't passed a law or whatever to limit our 
ability to do this or consider a wager increase. So, I'm supportive. I definitely want to make my 
decision based on some other things that aren't here.” Commissioner Sizemore also stated that 
he wanted to have all the cardrooms weigh in not just the petitioner.  

Chair Levy asked Commissioners if they had any additional questions. They did not.  
 
Chair Levy asked for public comment. 



8 
 

Barry Murray, Liaison for the Iron Horse Casino, Auburn, Washington said, “echoing what the 
points they made, whether it's costs, I think I mentioned to Director Griffin this morning that I 
can't hire a cook for less than $22- $23 an hour at this point. And it's becoming very challenging. 
Staffing's challenging everywhere, let's face it, but this is a nice step moving forward. And so, we 
just wanted to echo the support for this moving forward. Thank you.”  
Tony Johns on behalf of Evergreen Gaming said, “I'm the general manager at both Chips and 
Palace Casinos in Lakewood. I just wanted to come to you and let you know that on behalf of 
Evergreen Gaming, we do support this rule change and really to echo what the representatives 
from Maverick are saying, with the increased costs of wages, the skyrocketing increases and 
inflation, really, it's become a challenge to kind of keep up with. Competitive wages is really 
what it comes down to from our perspective. We talk about competition, certainly when it comes 
to the tribal casinos from our perspective, when we talk about competing, we're talking about for 
similar jobs, similar positions. Floor supervisor wages, wages with cooks, security staff, 
surveillance staff, that's where we see the competitive end of things, where we have to compete to 
be able to offer higher wages or competitive wages to those staff members. And that's where a lot 
of our challenges fall. So really, that's our take on that. And certainly, we support the thought of 
bringing this petition forward for further discussion to really iron out the details and come to 
what everyone can agree is a workable solution to a lot of these problems that we face. And 
really, just dial in the details where everyone is comfortable with a wager increase, whatever 
that ends up looking like. And I thank you for your time.” 

Julie Anderson read the electronic public comments that were sent in to the Gambling 
Commission (insert date and time) from Tony Johns. “Evergreen gaming wishes to support the 
submitted rule petition requesting that the maximum wager limits be increased to $500 and 
$1,000 limited to no more than three table games. Evergreen gaming believes that this rule 
change is necessary to continue to keep up with the increasing wage growth and skyrocketing 
inflation. Evergreen gaming wishes to remain competitive with its pay and benefits offering 
throughout the food and entertainment industry the $500 table limits will play a vital role in 
doing this and the $1,000 limits, on up to three table games will allow us to provide a desirable 
option to the top 3% of guests who currently go out of state were comparable limits are offered. 
We thank you for your consideration of this rule change and look forward to participating in 
future discussions on how to implement it most effectively in a way that promotes safe and 
responsible gaming.” 

 Signed Tony Johns, General Manager, Chips Casino and Palace Casino. 

Chair Levy called for public comment. They were no further public comments.  

Commissioner Sizemore moved to initiate rule-making proceedings regarding wager limits for 
further discussion. 
Commissioner Patterson seconded the motion. 
The motion passed. 5:0 
Lastly, Commissioner Sizemore mentioned going to the National Conference of Legislators of 
Gaming States (NCLGS) in Boston in July. He stated he found value in attending the conference 
and said that the organization is making great strides in having legislators from across the 
country, come together, be provided access to folks in the industry as well as to be discussing 



9 
 

some issues that are raising its head in gaming across the country, across Indian country, as well 
as the commercial and nonprofit area.  Representative Kloba attended as well and was appointed 
to one of the executive committees for the organization. She said one of the motivations behind 
that is that she doesn’t see enough attention in those meetings given to problem gambling. And 
she said it's often just a side note and it's inadequate. So, she really wants to take the work that 
we're doing here in Washington and bring it forward.   

Thursday’s meeting adjourned at 12:14 PM and will reconvene on Friday at 9:30 AM for 
Executive Session only.  

 
August Gambling Commission Meeting Minutes 

Hybrid Meeting  
*August 12, 2022 

 
Commissioners Present:                                     Ex Officios Present:                          
Chair Alicia Levy      Senator Steve Conway (Via Teams) 
Julia Patterson (Via Teams)    Representative Kloba  (Via Teams) 
Bud Sizemore                
Kristine Reeves (Via Teams)  
Sarah Lawson (Via Teams) 
 
Staff Present: 
Tina Griffin, Director; Julie Anderson, Executive Assistant  
 
Staff Present Virtually: 
Julie Lies, Tribal Liaison; Suzanne Becker, Assistant Attorney General (AAG) 
 
Chair Levy reconvened day two of the August Commission meeting at 9:37AM and asked 
Director Griffin to call the roll to confirm a quorum.  
 
Chair Levy announced that the Commissioners would be going into Executive Session to 
discuss current and potential agency litigation with legal counsel, including tribal negotiations. 
This is anticipated to take three hours adjourning around 12:30 PM. The Commission will return 
to the public meeting for adjournment only.  
 
Executive Session adjourned at 11:40 AM and the public meeting adjourned at 11:41 AM. 



 

 
STATE OF WASHINGTON 

GAMBLING COMMISSION 
“Protect the Public by Ensuring that Gambling is Legal and Honest”  

1 
 

Revised July Special Gambling Commission Meeting Minutes 
Hybrid Meeting  
*July 25, 2022 

 
Commissioners Present:                                      
Bud Sizemore (Via Teams) 
Julia Patterson (Via Teams) 
Alicia Levy (Via Teams) 
 

Ex Officio Members Present:  
 

 
Staff Present : 
Tina Griffin, Director; Michelle Rancour, Administrative Assistant 
 
Staff Present Virtually: 
Lisa Benavidez, Human Recourses Director and Nicole Frazer, Administrative Assistant 
 
Chair Levy called the virtual meeting to order at 2:04 PM. The purpose of the meeting was to 
hold an executive session to review the performance of a commission employee. There was no 
action taken.   
 
Executive Session adjourned at 3:18PM. 
 
 
**Commissioners Reeves and Lawson were not present at the July Special Commission 
Meeting. 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

COMMISSION APPROVAL LIST 
(New Licenses & Class III Gaming Employees) 

September 2022 
 

 
Index 

 
 
 

                                                                    PAGE 
NONPROFIT ORGANIZATIONS & COMMERCIAL BUSINESSES…………     1-2 
 
DISTRIBUTOR REPRESENTATIVE ………………………………………….      3 
 
MANUFACTURER REPRESENTATIVE ……………………………………        3-4 
 
CALL CENTER REPRESENTATIVE ………………………………………          5 
 
MAJOR SPORTS WAGERING REPRESENTATIVE…………………………      5-12 
 
NON-PROFIT GAMBLING MANAGER ………………………………………     12 
 
SERVICE SUPPLIER REPRESENTATIVE……………………………………      12 
 
CARD ROOM EMPLOYEE …………………………………………………....      12-15 
 
CLASS III GAMING EMPLOYEE ……………………………………………       16-25 
 
 
                                                                               PAGES:25 
 
 
Based upon the licensing investigations, staff recommends approving all new Licenses and 
Class III employees listed on pages 1 to 25. 



DATE: 08/22/2022

ORGANIZATION NAME

LICENSE NUMBER PREMISES LOCATION

NEW APPLICATIONS

Page 1 of 25

BINGO

SEATTLE WA 9811501-0281500-00314
8201 LAKE CITY WAY NEFOE 00001

BURLINGTON WA 9823301-0281900-01957
119 N CHERRY STFOE 03242

SELAH WA 9894201-0281700-23754
SELAH CIVIC CENTERSELAH DOWNTOWN ASSOCIATION

RAFFLE

SPOKANE WA 9920102-2126300-24958
210 W CATALDO AVEBLOOD CENTER FOUNDATION OF THE INLAND NORTHWEST

PORT TOWNSEND WA 98368-971002-0950000-00835
555 OTTO STBPOE 00317

CHENEY WA 9922402-2123800-24901
6120 S ABBOTT RDCHS BLACKHAWK BAND PARENT BOOSTER

VANCOUVER WA 9866102-0893000-21815
6926 NE FOURTH PLAIN BLVDCOLUMBIA RIVER MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES

KENMORE WA 9802802-2126600-24966
7514 NE 204TH PLDR. STANLEY STAMM GUILD

SAMMAMISH WA 9807402-2126400-24960
25625 E PLATEAU DRKICK CHILDHOOD CANCER GUILD

KENNEWICK WA 9802802-2124800-24921
14477 JUANITA DR NEKIRKLAND ARTS CENTER

KENNEWICK WA 9933602-0823100-18602
5111 COLUMBIA PARK TRAILROTARY CLUB/RICHLAND-RIVERSIDE

SELAH WA 9894202-0970600-23754
SELAH CIVIC CENTERSELAH DOWNTOWN ASSOCIATION

SNOHOMISH WA 98290-302102-0931900-23049
27 PINE AVESNOHOMISH YOUTH SOCCER CLUB

PASCO WA 9930102-2087000-24165
6104 PIMLICO DRUSBC WASHINGTON TRI-CITY BOWLING ASSOC

SEDRO WOOLLEY WA 9828402-2124400-24912
570 BELLA STVALLEY GREEN ACRES 4-H CLUB



DATE: 08/22/2022

ORGANIZATION NAME

LICENSE NUMBER PREMISES LOCATION

NEW APPLICATIONS

Page 2 of 25

AMUSEMENT GAMES NONPROFIT

SEATTLE WA 9810903-2073600-20825
415 WESTLAKE AVE NSEATTLE GIRLS CHOIR GUILD

PUNCHBOARD/PULL-TAB COMMERCIAL STIMULANT

SPOKANE WA 9920805-2175800-24890
8801 N INDIAN TRAIL RDADELO'S PIZZA PASTA & PINTS

SPOKANE WA 9921805-2177800-24947
9115 N DIVISIONBIGFOOT PUB

MILLWOOD WA 9921205-2177500-24937
3319 N ARGONNE RDSTOCKWELL'S CHILL N GRILL

COMMERCIAL AMUSEMENT GAMES OPERATOR

PORTLAND OR 9726653-2155700-24913
3407 SE 108TH AVEC NOTE CONCESSIONS

CASTLE ROCK WA 9861153-2155900-24933
135 TWIN PEAK DRFUNTASTIC VENDING LLC

SPOKANE WA 99208-739353-2104000-21305
1112 E MAGNESIUM RDLILAC LANES & CASINO

MAJOR SPORTS WAGERING VENDOR

81-0000810-00071
DRAFTKINGS

81-0001110-00209

222 BERKELEY ST 
BOSTON MA 02116

142 TRIQ IL-KBIRA 
ZEBBUG  ZBG1303

SBTECH MALTA LIMITED

ANCILLARY SPORTS WAGERING VENDOR

MARIETTA GA 3006783-0001510-00065
1600 TERRELL MILL ROADTELECHECK SERVICES, LLC



DATE: 08/22/2022

PERSON'S NAME

LICENSE NUMBER

EMPLOYER'S NAME

PREMISES LOCATION

NEW APPLICATIONS

Page 3 of 25

DISTRIBUTOR REPRESENTATIVE

LAS VEGAS NV 8911822-01316
NRT TECHNOLOGIES INCBUCHANAN, JERRY G JR

LAS VEGAS NV 8911822-01317
NRT TECHNOLOGIES INCJACKSON, LETICIA C

MANUFACTURER REPRESENTATIVE

LAS VEGAS NV 8913523-03497
ARISTOCRAT TECHNOLOGIES INCADEYEMI, BIOLA A

LAS VEGAS NV 8911923-03481
SCIENTIFIC GAMESBHATTARAI, PRATIK

LAS VEGAS NV 8911323-03486
IGTBONEY, QUINT H

LAS VEGAS NV 8911923-03498
SCIENTIFIC GAMESBOOSHANAM, SANTHOSH KUMAR

LAS VEGAS NV 8911923-03482
SCIENTIFIC GAMESCAMPBELL, ALLEN E

LAS VEGAS NV 8913923-03475
BLUBERI GAMING USA INCDEVERILL, ERIC D

LAS VEGAS NV 8911323-03485
IGTDEWEESE, MORIAH S

LAS VEGAS NV 8911323-03493
IGTDONAIS, SHANE A

LAS VEGAS NV 8911323-02285
IGTFOLIS, MICHAEL J

LAS VEGAS NV 8911923-01513
SCIENTIFIC GAMESGERMONO, ROWLAND B

LAS VEGAS NV 8911323-03476
IGTHOPPER, RAYMOND E

LAS VEGAS NV 8911923-03494
SCIENTIFIC GAMESJACKSON, DENA M

LAS VEGAS NV 8911923-03487
SCIENTIFIC GAMESKUMAR, RUPESH



DATE: 08/22/2022

PERSON'S NAME

LICENSE NUMBER

EMPLOYER'S NAME

PREMISES LOCATION

NEW APPLICATIONS

Page 4 of 25

MANUFACTURER REPRESENTATIVE

LAS VEGAS NV 8913523-03496
ARISTOCRAT TECHNOLOGIES INCLOPEZ, JENIEVIEVE P

LAS VEGAS NV 89119-350423-03491
GAMING ARTSLOPEZ, ROBERTO G

LAS VEGAS NV 89119-350423-03490
GAMING ARTSLOZANO, MICHAEL A

LAS VEGAS NV 8911923-03488
SCIENTIFIC GAMESMAMACHAN, MONCY

LAS VEGAS NV 8913523-03458
ARISTOCRAT TECHNOLOGIES INCMETZ, DAVID R

LAS VEGAS NV 8913923-03483
BLUBERI GAMING USA INCPERSE, DALTON L

LAS VEGAS NV 8913523-03474
ARISTOCRAT TECHNOLOGIES INCRICHMOND, JOSHUA A

LAS VEGAS NV 8911323-01701
IGTROBBINS, DOUGLAS A

LAS VEGAS NV 8913523-03472
ARISTOCRAT TECHNOLOGIES INCSALISBURY, HAROLD J JR

LAS VEGAS NV 89113-217523-02055
EVERI PAYMENTS INCSANTIAGO, EMMANUEL J

LAS VEGAS NV 8913523-03492
ARISTOCRAT TECHNOLOGIES INCSOSA, DANIA

LAS VEGAS NV 89113-217523-03195
EVERI PAYMENTS INCTARPLEY, GARRETT A

LAS VEGAS NV 8913523-03480
ARISTOCRAT TECHNOLOGIES INCVAZQUEZ, DIEGO D

LAS VEGAS NV 89113-217523-03484
EVERI PAYMENTS INCWHITT, ERIC J

LAS VEGAS NV 8913523-03489
ARISTOCRAT TECHNOLOGIES INCWOODARD, SAMUEL M



DATE: 08/22/2022

PERSON'S NAME

LICENSE NUMBER

EMPLOYER'S NAME

PREMISES LOCATION

NEW APPLICATIONS

Page 5 of 25

CALL CENTER REPRESENTATIVE

CANTON OH 4471832-00065
INCEPT CORPORATIONALLEN, TERRY L

CANTON OH 4471832-00064
INCEPT CORPORATIONFETTERS, MARSHA A

CANTON OH 4471832-00063
INCEPT CORPORATIONPYLE, TINA J

CANTON OH 4471832-00066
INCEPT CORPORATIONZARCONI, ANTHONY

MAJOR SPORTS WAGERING REPRESENTATIVE

33-00194
ADAMS, KYLER T

33-00294
ALEXANDER, ZACHARY J

33-00320
ALKALAY, LION

33-00341
AMPHAI, KIMBERLY T

33-00178
ANDREWS, DAVID A

33-00208
ANNARUMMO, GREGORY E

33-00324
ANTOCHI, ALEXANDRU

33-00175
ARNAUDO, CHARLES L

33-00278
BADALOV, STANIMIR Z

33-00321
BAHLAY, ANDRIY

33-00307

DRAFTKINGS
BOSTON MA 02116

DRAFTKINGS
BOSTON MA 02116

SBTECH MALTA LIMITED 
ZEBBUG ZBG1303

DRAFTKINGS
BOSTON MA 02116

DRAFTKINGS
BOSTON MA 02116

DRAFTKINGS
BOSTON MA 02116

DRAFTKINGS
BOSTON MA 02116

DRAFTKINGS
BOSTON MA 02116

DRAFTKINGS
BOSTON MA 02116

SBTECH MALTA LIMITED 
ZEBBUG  ZBG1303

DRAFTKINGS
BOSTON MA 02116

BARTLETT, RICHARD H



DATE: 08/22/2022

PERSON'S NAME

LICENSE NUMBER

EMPLOYER'S NAME

PREMISES LOCATION

NEW APPLICATIONS

Page 6 of 25

MAJOR SPORTS WAGERING REPRESENTATIVE

33-00322
BASTOS, ANDRE A

33-00248
BAUMOHL, STEPHEN P

33-00189
BEAULIEU, JOSEPH R

33-00195
BHALLA, MANU

33-00237
BINHAM, CHRISTOPHER J

33-00193
BLONCHEK, JONATHON R

33-00250
BORNSTEIN, DEVIN W

33-00219
BOTELHO, ANDREW J

33-00176
BOWLES, CHRISTOPHER W

33-00337
BRION, PATRICK B

33-00198
BROWN, ROBERT I

33-00223
BRUESCH, MICHAEL D

33-00304
BYRNE, FERGUS

33-00333
CASEY, TIMOTHY J

33-00186
COURMAC, JAYSEN B

33-00317

DRAFTKINGS
BOSTON MA 02116

SBTECH MALTA LIMITED 
ZEBBUG ZBG1303

DRAFTKINGS
BOSTON MA 02116

DRAFTKINGS
BOSTON MA 02116

SBTECH MALTA LIMITED 
ZEBBUG  ZBG1303

DRAFTKINGS
BOSTON MA 02116

DRAFTKINGS
BOSTON MA 02116

DRAFTKINGS
BOSTON MA 02116

DRAFTKINGS
BOSTON MA 02116

DRAFTKINGS
BOSTON MA 02116

DRAFTKINGS
BOSTON MA 02116

DRAFTKINGS
BOSTON MA 02116

DRAFTKINGS
BOSTON MA 02116

DRAFTKINGS
BOSTON MA 02116

DRAFTKINGS
BOSTON MA 02116

DRAFTKINGS
BOSTON MA 02116

CREANER, JOHN A



DATE: 08/22/2022

PERSON'S NAME

LICENSE NUMBER

EMPLOYER'S NAME

PREMISES LOCATION

NEW APPLICATIONS

Page 7 of 25

MAJOR SPORTS WAGERING REPRESENTATIVE

33-00305
CROWN, JAMES A

33-00350
DEWEESE, MORIAH S

33-00345
DOGRAMADZHIYAN, AGOP G

33-00185
DOWNS, JAMES M

33-00202
DUNN, TRAVIS R

33-00221
EHRENWALD, IAN M

33-00191
EMLER, JOHN M

33-00273
FERNANDEZ, JASON A

33-00276
GALLAGHER, BRETT J

33-00335
GOODMAN, SIMON

33-00215
GREGORKA, ROBERT W

33-00360
GRIFFIN, JEROME

33-00174
GRYTE, CARL A

33-00220
HAIRSTON, CARLINE A

33-00286
HALL, JONATHAN T

33-00206

DRAFTKINGS
BOSTON MA 02116

IGT
LAS VEGAS NV 89113

SBTECH MALTA LIMITED
ZEBBUG  ZBG1303

DRAFTKINGS
BOSTON MA 02116

DRAFTKINGS
BOSTON MA 02116

DRAFTKINGS
BOSTON MA 02116

DRAFTKINGS
BOSTON MA 02116

DRAFTKINGS
BOSTON MA 02116

DRAFTKINGS
BOSTON MA 02116

DRAFTKINGS
BOSTON MA 02116

DRAFTKINGS
BOSTON MA 02116

DRAFTKINGS
BOSTON MA 02116

DRAFTKINGS
BOSTON MA 02116

DRAFTKINGS
BOSTON MA 02116

SPORTS INFORMATION SERVICES LIMITED 
TA'XBIEX NA XBX1120

DRAFTKINGS
BOSTON MA 02116

HARRIS, BRIAN R



DATE: 08/22/2022

PERSON'S NAME

LICENSE NUMBER

EMPLOYER'S NAME

PREMISES LOCATION

NEW APPLICATIONS

Page 8 of 25

MAJOR SPORTS WAGERING REPRESENTATIVE

33-00348
HASTINGS, AMBER N

33-00192
HENDERSON, JOHN D

33-00274
HOELTER, CHRISTOPHER E

33-00188
INGLE, JENNIFER J

33-00277
IVANOV, GERASIM

33-00190
JOHNSON, JOEL M

33-00227
JORDAN, CHRISTOPHER S

33-00308
KAPOOR, ROHAN

33-00238
KATSIMADIS, GEORGIOS

33-00234
KAYSER, JAMES P

33-00212
KESACK, DANIEL A

33-00200
KHUU, SI H

33-00249
KRASNER, ALEXEI

33-00339
KUNOVIC, FRANK G III

33-00330
KUZMYK, YURII

33-00328

DRAFTKINGS
BOSTON MA 02116

DRAFTKINGS
BOSTON MA 02116

DRAFTKINGS
BOSTON MA 02116

DRAFTKINGS
BOSTON MA 02116

DRAFTKINGS
BOSTON MA 02116

DRAFTKINGS
BOSTON MA 02116

DRAFTKINGS
BOSTON MA 02116

DRAFTKINGS
BOSTON MA 02116

SBTECH MALTA LIMITED 
ZEBBUG  ZBG1303

DRAFTKINGS
BOSTON MA 02116

DRAFTKINGS
BOSTON MA 02116

DRAFTKINGS
BOSTON MA 02116

SBTECH MALTA LIMITED 
ZEBBUG  ZBG1303

DRAFTKINGS
BOSTON MA 02116

DRAFTKINGS
BOSTON MA 02116

DRAFTKINGS
BOSTON MA 02116

LATIF, KAMRUL H



DATE: 08/22/2022

PERSON'S NAME

LICENSE NUMBER

EMPLOYER'S NAME

PREMISES LOCATION

NEW APPLICATIONS

Page 9 of 25

MAJOR SPORTS WAGERING REPRESENTATIVE

33-00359
LATKOVIC, DURO

33-00213
LAWRENCE, JUSTIN D

33-00172
LESSER, BRADLEY J

33-00171
LIEBERMAN, BENJAMIN J

33-00180
LIU, DENNY D

33-00332
LOPUSHANSKA, LIUBOV

33-00179
LUSTIG, DAVID C

33-00181
MALINOWSKI, EDWARD J

33-00182
MARTINEZ CAMPOS, ELIAS M

33-00183
MATA, FRANCISCO A

33-00325
MCKENNA, CONOR J

33-00211
MEJIA GUZMAN, MICHAEL S

33-00252
MEZHVYNSKIY, OLEG

33-00216
MISTRY, RONAK P

33-00280
MITCH, YOSSI

33-00204

DRAFTKINGS
BOSTON MA 02116

DRAFTKINGS
BOSTON MA 02116

DRAFTKINGS
BOSTON MA 02116

DRAFTKINGS
BOSTON MA 02116

DRAFTKINGS
BOSTON MA 02116

SBTECH MALTA LIMITED 
ZEBBUG  ZBG1303

DRAFTKINGS
BOSTON MA 02116

DRAFTKINGS
BOSTON MA 02116

DRAFTKINGS
BOSTON MA 02116

DRAFTKINGS
BOSTON MA 02116

DRAFTKINGS
BOSTON MA 02116

DRAFTKINGS
BOSTON MA 02116

SBTECH MALTA LIMITED 
ZEBBUG ZBG1303

DRAFTKINGS
BOSTON MA 02116

DRAFTKINGS
BOSTON MA 02116

DRAFTKINGS
BOSTON MA 02116

MOYNIHAN, DANIEL R



DATE: 08/22/2022

PERSON'S NAME

LICENSE NUMBER

EMPLOYER'S NAME

PREMISES LOCATION

NEW APPLICATIONS

Page 10 of 25

MAJOR SPORTS WAGERING REPRESENTATIVE

33-00233
MURRAY, DAVID T

33-00344
NGO, STEPHANIE

33-00168
NOCKA, ANDREW E

33-00169
PAOLINO, ANDREW J

33-00279
PETROV, METODI K

33-00203
POINTER, TRELAWNEY R

33-00342
PYSANKA, IGOR

33-00262
RANGARAJAN, DEEPTHA KANNAN

33-00170
RICO, ANTHONY R

33-00336
ROBERTS, PHILLIP

33-00318
ROONEY, MATTHEW P

33-00343
ROSENTHAL, KYLIE

33-00197
SELVAKUMAR, PRADEEP

33-00184
SERGILE, FRANCKY

33-00340
SOUKUP, JOEL A

33-00187

DRAFTKINGS
BOSTON MA 02116

DRAFTKINGS
BOSTON MA 02116

DRAFTKINGS
BOSTON MA 02116

DRAFTKINGS
BOSTON MA 02116

DRAFTKINGS
BOSTON MA 02116

DRAFTKINGS
BOSTON MA 02116

SBTECH MALTA LIMITED 
ZEBBUG ZBG1303

DRAFTKINGS
BOSTON MA 02116

DRAFTKINGS
BOSTON MA 02116

DRAFTKINGS
BOSTON MA 02116

DRAFTKINGS
BOSTON MA 02116

DRAFTKINGS
BOSTON MA 02116

DRAFTKINGS
BOSTON MA 02116

DRAFTKINGS
BOSTON MA 02116

DRAFTKINGS
BOSTON MA 02116

DRAFTKINGS
BOSTON MA 02116

STONE, JAYSON M



DATE: 08/22/2022

PERSON'S NAME

LICENSE NUMBER

EMPLOYER'S NAME

PREMISES LOCATION

NEW APPLICATIONS

Page 11 of 25

MAJOR SPORTS WAGERING REPRESENTATIVE

33-00177
SUCHACZ, DANIEL J

33-00329
THOMPSON, MATTHEW W

33-00323
TRAYNOR, NIALL

33-00338
TREGO, JOSHUA S

33-00299
UDY, CALEB M

33-00357
VALDEZ, PAUL

33-00293
VALIM CARDOSO, MARCELO

33-00275
VENKATESWARAN, ARUNESWARAN

33-00319
VENTURELLA, WILLIAM V

33-00346
VOLKOVA, KATERYNA

33-00306
VONDERSMITH, JASON D

33-00207
WALKER, BRIAN J

33-00334
WEBB, STEVEN J JR

33-00201
WEISSENSEE, THOMAS M

33-00210
WELCH, MATTHEW C

33-00173

DRAFTKINGS
BOSTON MA 02116

DRAFTKINGS
BOSTON MA 02116

DRAFTKINGS
BOSTON MA 02116

DRAFTKINGS
BOSTON MA 02116

CAESARS SPORTSBOOK 
LAS VEGAS NV 89118

CAESARS SPORTSBOOK 
LAS VEGAS NV 89118

DRAFTKINGS
BOSTON MA 02116

DRAFTKINGS
BOSTON MA 02116

DRAFTKINGS
BOSTON MA 02116

SBTECH MALTA LIMITED 
ZEBBUG  ZBG1303

DRAFTKINGS
BOSTON MA 02116

DRAFTKINGS
BOSTON MA 02116

DRAFTKINGS
BOSTON MA 02116

DRAFTKINGS
BOSTON MA 02116

DRAFTKINGS
BOSTON MA 02116

DRAFTKINGS
BOSTON MA 02116

WILSON, BRIAN J



DATE: 08/22/2022

PERSON'S NAME

LICENSE NUMBER

EMPLOYER'S NAME

PREMISES LOCATION

NEW APPLICATIONS

Page 12 of 25

MAJOR SPORTS WAGERING REPRESENTATIVE

BOSTON MA 0211633-00347
DRAFTKINGSWILSON, MARSHALL W

LAS VEGAS NV 8911933-00358
NYX DIGITAL GAMING (USA), LLCXIA, KUANGZHENG

BOSTON MA 0211633-00196
DRAFTKINGSYOUNG, NICOLE M

NON-PROFIT GAMBLING MANAGER

PORT ORCHARD WA 9836661-04803
FOE 02338BRUMMOND, JULIE L

BREMERTON WA 9831261-04801
WESTSIDE IMPROVEMENT CLUBLAINHART DAVIS, SHONDA L

STANWOOD WA 9829261-04799
AMERICAN LEGION 00092LUND, CHRISTINE C

PORT ORCHARD WA 9836661-04804
FOE 02338TARABOCHIA, JARED A

WENATCHEE WA 9880161-04800
FOE 00204WHITMAN, KARYN M

SERVICE SUPPLIER REPRESENTATIVE

VANCOUVER WA 9866063-01047
SALISHAN-MOHEGAN LLCDAVEY, BRIAN S

CARD ROOM EMPLOYEE

SILVERDALE WA 98383B68-36114
ALL STAR CASINOANKENY-SHADLE, ANTHONY L

AUBURN WA 98002B68-36826
IRON HORSE CASINOAUTAGAVAIA, MALAEFONO

CLARKSTON WA 99403-2219B68-36815
LANCER LANES/REST AND CASINOBELTRAN, LUIS A



DATE: 08/22/2022

PERSON'S NAME

LICENSE NUMBER

EMPLOYER'S NAME

PREMISES LOCATION

NEW APPLICATIONS

Page 13 of 25

CARD ROOM EMPLOYEE

KENNEWICK WA 99336B68-18268
COYOTE BOB'S CASINOBERRYAN, RICHARD  JR

YAKIMA WA 98901B68-36842
CASINO CARIBBEANBILL, CURTIS E

SILVERDALE WA 98383B68-36021
ALL STAR CASINOBROOKE, MATTHEW T

KENNEWICK WA 99336B68-36825
COYOTE BOB'S CASINOBULZING, TREVOR B

SEATTLE WA 98178B68-35033
ROMAN CASINOCHEN, YUELING

PASCO WA 99301B68-36849
CRAZY MOOSE CASINO/PASCOCROWDER, CHRISTOPHER J

TUKWILA WA 98168B68-13199
GREAT AMERICAN CASINO/TUKWILADENG, ANTHONY L

LAKEWOOD WA 98499B68-36840
CHIPS CASINO/LAKEWOODEUFRACIO HERRERA, OSCAR

LACEY WA 98516B68-26560
FORTUNE CASINO - LACEYGARCIA, ZERNAN S

SPOKANE WA 99208-7393B68-36835
LILAC LANES & CASINOGRIMM, RACHEL D

RENTON WA 98057B68-25194
FORTUNE POKERHASHIMOTO, GREGG S

MOSES LAKE WA 98837B68-03991
PAPAS CASINO RESTAURANT & LOUNGEHAYNE, TYLER M

SEATTLE WA 98126B68-36841
ROXY'S BAR & GRILLHILL, ANJONET L

SEATAC WA 98188B68-36828
SILVER DOLLAR CASINO/SEATACHOWARD, TODD W

TUKWILA WA 98168B68-36832
GREAT AMERICAN CASINO/TUKWILAJACKSON, LINCOLN M

SILVERDALE WA 98383B68-36844
ALL STAR CASINOJENNINGS, ELIZABETH E



DATE: 08/22/2022

PERSON'S NAME

LICENSE NUMBER

EMPLOYER'S NAME

PREMISES LOCATION

NEW APPLICATIONS

Page 14 of 25

CARD ROOM EMPLOYEE

ELLENSBURG WA 98926B68-36850
WILD GOOSE CASINOJOHNSON, HALLIE J

SEATTLE WA 98126B68-09128
ROXY'S BAR & GRILLKHIM, RY

TUKWILA WA 98168B68-36843
GREAT AMERICAN CASINO/TUKWILAKNAPP, OLIVIA G

SILVERDALE WA 98383B68-36839
ALL STAR CASINOLANGWORTHY, NICOLE E

SEATTLE WA 98178B68-18732
ROMAN CASINOLIU, JIN X

EAST WENATCHEE WA 98802B68-36837
CLEARWATER SALOON & CASINOMARTIN, KYLE S

AUBURN WA 98002B68-36827
IRON HORSE CASINOMC DADE, CAROLE J

PULLMAN WA 99163B68-32989
ZEPPOZMICKELSON, JACOB J

TUKWILA WA 98168B68-36829
GREAT AMERICAN CASINO/TUKWILAMIXAYBOVA, PHOUTHASONE T

LAKEWOOD WA 98499-4457B68-20258
MACAU CASINONGUYEN, VANNY

RENTON WA 98055B68-36834
FORTUNE CASINO - RENTONNGUYEN, XUYEN K

AUBURN WA 98002B68-36854
IRON HORSE CASINOREAD, ROBERT N

PASCO WA 99301B68-36845
CRAZY MOOSE CASINO/PASCOSALAZAR-CONSUELO, CARLOS D

SPOKANE WA 99208-7393B68-33027
LILAC LANES & CASINOSALLADAY, CHARIDY R

PULLMAN WA 99163B68-36836
ZEPPOZTHOMPSON, CHASE A

PASCO WA 99301B68-19741
CRAZY MOOSE CASINO/PASCOTRUONG, NAM Q



DATE: 08/22/2022

PERSON'S NAME

LICENSE NUMBER

EMPLOYER'S NAME

PREMISES LOCATION

NEW APPLICATIONS

Page 15 of 25

CARD ROOM EMPLOYEE

LAKEWOOD WA 98499B68-36285
CHIPS CASINO/LAKEWOODTUOT-BLACK, LINDY P

EAST WENATCHEE WA 98802B68-36838
CLEARWATER SALOON & CASINOVELASQUEZ, CRUZ

RENTON WA 98057B68-36833
SILVER DOLLAR CASINO/RENTONWALSH, ADAM P

EAST WENATCHEE WA 98802B68-36848
BUZZ INN STEAKHOUSE/EAST WENATCHEEYOUNG, WILLIAM E



DATE: 08/22/2022

PERSON'S NAME

CERTIFICATION / ELIGIBILITY NUMBER

NEW APPLICATIONS

Page 16 of 25

CLASS III GAMING EMPLOYEE

CHEHALIS CONFEDERATED TRIBES

69-19714
DAVIS, SAYLY

69-53038
DUNN, JASON T

69-39392
HILL, SAMANTHA L

69-53054
HORNBACK, SEAN-PATRICK W

69-52890
KELLER, ROY R III

69-53039
KENNEDY, TYLER R

69-52891
MACE, BRADLEY G

69-52867
MCGARVEY BURPEE, KERRY A

69-53067
SMITH, LARRY L

69-40715
WILLIAMS, DILLIN K

69-52979
WOLBERSEN, ASHLEY R

COLVILLE CONFEDERATED TRIBES

69-50470
BELGARDE, RAESSA A

69-53024
CRIST, APRIL R

69-52994
DANIELS, LELA M

69-53022
GARCIA, GABRIEL

69-52927
POKOS, TAYLOR B

69-52993
TRAIL, DAVID P

69-53023
WADDELL, ROSE M

COWLITZ INDIAN TRIBE

69-53053
ALEXANDER, MELEA P

69-53027
BROWN, CHARLES C



DATE: 08/22/2022

PERSON'S NAME

CERTIFICATION / ELIGIBILITY NUMBER

 

NEW APPLICATIONS

Page 17 of 25

CLASS III GAMING EMPLOYEE

COWLITZ INDIAN TRIBE

69-53028
BURKE, GENE M

69-52874
CORRAL, JOHN C

69-52919
FAIRCHILD, SARAH M

69-52921
KIRCHHOF, DEVON M

69-52877
LAYHER, JILL V

69-52918
LUCKART, LORI A

69-53052
MANLEY, TAYLOR M

69-52875
MCCULLOUGH, MADISON N

69-53051
MCLAIN, JACKSON R

69-52876
MOFFETT, VICTORIA L

69-53030
NEUBAUM, DENA R

69-53025
PALACIOS, RAYMOND S

69-53026
ROBINSON, TESSA D

69-53029
RUSSELL, HAZEL M

69-53031
SCHWEITZER, NATHAN J

69-39058
SLOOP, MICHAEL D

69-52949
SMITH, ADRIAN T

69-52884
WELCH, JAMES A

69-52920
WELLS, CONNER A

69-51525
ZHU, QUN D

KALISPEL TRIBE

69-52957
ATKINS, ISAAC L

69-52956
BECK, JUSTIN J

69-52865
BERGSTROM, TYLER L

69-52987
BURNS, THERESA L



DATE: 08/22/2022

PERSON'S NAME

CERTIFICATION / ELIGIBILITY NUMBER

 

NEW APPLICATIONS

Page 18 of 25

CLASS III GAMING EMPLOYEE

KALISPEL TRIBE

69-53036
CURTIS, CHARLES D

69-52986
DENISON, VICTORIA R

69-52988
FISHALOW, ROBERT S

69-52973
LONG, BRIAN D

69-52937
MALLERY, KOLTON J

69-52909
MARZEK, DONNA S

69-52911
MILLER, MANDIE R

69-52863
MITCHELL, GAYTEN E

69-52864
MULLINS, KATHERINE D

69-52938
NSAHLAI EINSTEN, JOHN KERNYUY

69-52910
RAINEY, LILLY A

69-53066
SLATER, TIMOTHY M

69-52936
SMOKER, ELAYNA M

69-53037
STURGEON, SHYLA J

69-48526
WAYFER, LASHAYEMONET

LUMMI NATION

69-52906
JACKSON, SHALILA S

69-52907
KIENS, JEREMY J

69-52954
ORR, MICHAEL A

69-53100
WARRICK, TIMOTHY C

MUCKLESHOOT INDIAN TRIBE

69-52996
AGCAWILI, PATRICK J

69-52898
BATIMANA, KRYSTAL R



DATE: 08/22/2022

PERSON'S NAME

CERTIFICATION / ELIGIBILITY NUMBER

 

NEW APPLICATIONS

Page 19 of 25

CLASS III GAMING EMPLOYEE

MUCKLESHOOT INDIAN TRIBE

69-52899
HEADRESS-WILSON, TYLER G

69-52998
JAQUESS, GRANT O

69-52940
LUU, MARC Y

69-25229
MILLER, PEARL E

69-49773
NGUYEN, ALEXANDER T

69-52995
PO, THA

69-52939
STARR, MELISSA V

69-52997
SWANSON, FELICIA L

69-44139
TARBELL, MICHAELA D

NISQUALLY INDIAN TRIBE

69-52904
CONNORS, TRINA A

69-52866
FULLERTON, MACARENA M

69-52908
NESKAHI, CAROL A

NOOKSACK INDIAN TRIBE

69-52825
WASHINGTON, VERONICA R

69-38883
WESTON, DEBORAH L

PORT GAMBLE S'KLALLAM TRIBE

69-52915
SANFORD, CYNTHIA L

69-52914
SOLIS, BRENDA L

PUYALLUP TRIBE OF INDIANS

69-53059
CALANTE, RYAN A

69-53057
CORLETT, MARK W



DATE: 08/22/2022

PERSON'S NAME

CERTIFICATION / ELIGIBILITY NUMBER

 

NEW APPLICATIONS

Page 20 of 25

CLASS III GAMING EMPLOYEE

PUYALLUP TRIBE OF INDIANS

69-53065
CORTADO, MICHAEL

69-52926
CORTEZ, ROBERTO A

69-52944
FISO, MARISSAH F

69-39088
GLEBER, TODD M

69-53058
HAGEN, DANE E

69-29505
HAWK WRIGHT, JENNIFER M

69-53017
KNAPP, KIMBERLY M

69-52961
MARTINEZ, HETZON A

69-53000
MATAUTIA-AVEGA, TOLIUTAFA

69-06271
MILLINER, VICKI A

69-52962
MOLIOO, MELELANI R

69-52942
MUI, ENRIQUE R

69-52943
NEPO, JEZEMIAH T

69-52925
QUISOL, MANUEL S

69-53016
RADER, MARCUS R

69-53015
RANSOM MCADAMS, GENEVIA L

69-53002
SALAVEA, PALE H JR

69-21459
SOEUM, REUY

69-52963
STARKS, RASHEED J

69-53018
STONE, THOMAS E

69-53014
SUA, GUTU B

69-53001
TABACO, MARISSA F

69-53095
TRUJILLO, ANABEL

69-52964
TUITASI, PAULINE S



DATE: 08/22/2022

PERSON'S NAME

CERTIFICATION / ELIGIBILITY NUMBER

NEW APPLICATIONS

Page 21 of 25

CLASS III GAMING EMPLOYEE

PUYALLUP TRIBE OF INDIANS

69-52916
VASEGA, SAILIATA S

69-52941
WILLSEY, WILLIAM A

QUINAULT NATION

69-52870
HASSLER, REBECCA A

69-52958
HOLCOMB, NATHANAEL J

69-32421
QUICK, CHERYL L

69-52912
SKEENS, DREAMA M

SKOKOMISH TRIBE

69-52923
RIOJA, ADRIAN A

69-52922
STRONG, CHRISTOPHER G

69-35959
THOMAS, LINDSEY M

SNOQUALMIE TRIBE

69-52948
DAWSON, TAYLOR J

69-05581
DE ALMEIDA, CLAUDINEI J

69-53045
DZIEWIONTKOSKI, HEATHER R

69-53046
HOLT, KIMBERLY A

69-52978
LAPOINTE, SCOTT A

69-52977
PANTOJA VALERIO, GIANNI A

69-52975
TRAN, BRANDON L

69-15764
TRANILLA, CAROLEE F

69-47802
XU, LIBAO

69-52951
ZHURAVEL, DAVID V



DATE: 08/22/2022

PERSON'S NAME

CERTIFICATION / ELIGIBILITY NUMBER

NEW APPLICATIONS

Page 22 of 25

CLASS III GAMING EMPLOYEE

SPOKANE TRIBE

69-52967
BOND, JUSTIN M

69-52980
BUCK, SIRENA K

69-52897
GIFFORD, GILDA G

69-52959
GILECK, DERRICK S

69-52981
MARCELLAY, LONI L

69-48532
MORALES-PEREZ, DAN

69-52896
RINEMAN HOMEN, PATRICK K

69-52878
SHERWOOD, ELGIN M

69-52924
THOMPSON, MISTI D

SQUAXIN ISLAND TRIBE

69-42371
CARCAISE, RONALD G

69-52974
DEWEY, BRODY E

69-52991
GONZALEZ, CHRISTOPHER R

69-52965
KAYOTUK, ROLAND R

69-52990
LESLIE, SHAUN D

69-10611
LILLIE, RICHARD E

69-32483
MAN, CHANNARA

69-52952
PIERCE, EDWARD B

69-52966
RAHAM, NATHANIEL X

69-52992
SIMONEAU, MICHAEL R

69-52953
WARNER, BRANDON M



DATE: 08/22/2022

PERSON'S NAME

CERTIFICATION / ELIGIBILITY NUMBER

NEW APPLICATIONS

Page 23 of 25

CLASS III GAMING EMPLOYEE

SUQUAMISH TRIBE

69-53050
ETTER, JAMES W

69-53060
HAWTHORN, SHANE E

SWINOMISH INDIAN TRIBAL COMMUNITY

69-52929
HOWARD, DEWITT C II

69-53044
LOHMAN, ANDREW O

69-53064
MAYLOR, NATHAN P

69-53063
MILLERD, NEASTIASHIA A

69-52930
ROARK, ALLEN D JR

69-52982
SWEENEY, LEEAM O

69-52983
TECUATL, ALEJANDRO A

THE TULALIP TRIBES

69-52971
BAIN, GAGE T

69-52935
BOWERS, ANDREAS C

69-52985
CORTEZ, ISIAH E

69-52933
ECHEVARRIA, JESUS A JR

69-52970
EDGAR, KYLE A

69-39971
ENICK, MADISEN K

69-53003
FISH, MALLORY L

69-53011
HOLCOMBE, DYLAN P

69-06276
JOHNSON, JAMES M JR

69-53007
KIMBROUGH, SOPHIE L

69-52984
MAYES, TRACY L

69-53010
MUNOZ, LIZBETH



DATE: 08/22/2022

PERSON'S NAME

CERTIFICATION / ELIGIBILITY NUMBER

NEW APPLICATIONS

Page 24 of 25

CLASS III GAMING EMPLOYEE

THE TULALIP TRIBES

69-52862
MURILLO, FERNANDO A

69-53004
NAPEAHI, DEVIN M

69-52934
PAMATIAN, ALEXANDER N

69-53006
ROBINSON, CHASE C

69-53005
SIMPSON, ANGELINA J

69-00279
SIMPSON, JEFFREY M

69-53032
SNELL, CHENG YU

69-52969
STUMP-RENDON, JOSHUA E

69-50344
TIM, BOREY

69-53008
VANN, SANDRA L

69-52972
WALTON, MARSHAWN A

69-53009
WEDDLE, TRENISA T

69-47241
WILLIAMS, VENIECE E

UPPER SKAGIT INDIAN TRIBE

69-53021
BELL, JORDAN M

69-52903
BLACK, ANDREW N

69-53019
FULLER, PATIENCE O

69-53020
JAXON, LEXI G

69-52905
SHANNON, MYKENZEE M

YAKAMA NATION

69-53061
ALCANTAR, ARTURO D

69-08950
BEGAY, ANGELA L



DATE: 08/22/2022

PERSON'S NAME

CERTIFICATION / ELIGIBILITY NUMBER

NEW APPLICATIONS

Page 25 of 25

CLASS III GAMING EMPLOYEE

YAKAMA NATION

69-53062
BOYES, DEREK R

69-48037
DELEON MARTINEZ, MARISABEL I

69-32182
FAIRBANKS, JOSHUA T

69-52932
GALLAHER, PAMELA M

69-24378
GASPARD, JOHN H

69-47725
JOHNSON, REGINAL R

69-52955
LONGEE, SAMANTHA A

69-52931
SANTIAGO, IVAN



Washington State Gambling Commission 
Pre-Licensing Report 

Major Sports Wagering Vendor  

Part I 
Licensing/Organization Information 

Type of Approval 
Major Sports Wagering Vendor License  

Trade Name/ Premises Address 
Crown WA Gaming, LLC dba DraftKings 
222 Berkeley St  
Boston, MA 02116 

Date of Application 
July 27, 2021 

APPLICANT INFORMATION 
Name 
Crown WA Gaming, LLC dba DraftKings 

License Application #  
10-00071 

Business Phone # 
(617) 999-4848 

Mailing Address 
222 Berkeley St  
Boston, MA 02116 

ACTIVE LICENSES ISSUED BY GAMBLING COMMISSION 
Description/Class 
Major Sports Wagering Vendor License 

Exp. Date 
6/30/2023 

License Number(s) 
81-00008 

COMMISSION STAFF 
Licensing Specialist 
Michael Moore  

Special Agents 
Lisa Saila 
Julie Sullivan 
Kevin Maxwell 

 

 
 
 
 
 
Background/Structure 

 
General Information: 
 
Crown WA Gaming, LLC, doing business as DraftKings, applied for a Major Sports Wagering Vendor 
license to provide the following services in Washington: 
• Managing a Tribe’s or Tribes’ sports wagering operations and  
• Providing bookmaking services.  
   
 



Ownership/corporate structure:  Crown WA Gaming, LLC   
Title Name % Ownership 

CEO, President, 
Director  

Paul Liberman  0 

CFO, Treasurer, 
Director 

Jason Park  0 

Secretary Robert Stanton Dodge * 0 
Owner Crown Gaming Inc. 100% 
 TOTAL 100% 

 
Crown Gaming, Inc.  

Title Name % Ownership 
President, 
Director 

Paul Liberman  0% 

Treasurer, 
Director 

Jason Park 0% 

Secretary  Robert Stanton Dodge * 0% 
Shareholder DK Crown Holdings, Inc.   100% 
 TOTAL 100% 

 
DK Crown Holdings, Inc.  (formerly DraftKings Inc. (DE)) 

Title Name % Ownership 
CEO/President  Paul Liberman 0% 
CFO, Treasurer, 
Director 

Jason Park 0% 

Secretary Robert Stanton Dodge * 0% 
Shareholder DraftKings Holdings, Inc. 100% 
 TOTAL 100% 

 
DraftKings Holdings, Inc. (formerly DraftKings Inc. (NV)) 

Title Name % Ownership 
CEO Jason Robins 0% 
Director Paul Liberman 0% 
Secretary, CLO Robert Stanton Dodge * 0% 
CFO, Director Jason Park 0% 
Shareholder DraftKings Inc. 100% 
 TOTAL 100% 

 
DraftKings, Inc. (NV) ** 

Title Name % Ownership 
CEO, Chairman Jason Robins  < 5% 
Secretary, CLO  Robert Stanton Dodge * < 5% 
CFO  Jason Park  < 5% 
Director Paul Liberman < 5% 
Director Matthew Kalish  < 5% 
Director Woodrow Levin  0% 
Director Steven Murray 0% 
Director Ryan Moore  0% 
Director Marni Walden  0% 
Director Valerie Mosley  0% 
Director Jocelyn Moore    0% 



Director Shalom Meckenzie  0% 
Director Harry Sloan (MJF) 0% 
Institutional 
Investor 

The Vanguard Group, Inc. 6.43% 

Institutional 
Investor 

ARK Investment Management, 
LLC 

5.41% 

Stockholders Individually <5% of total 
shares 

63.16% 

 TOTAL 100% 
 
* Role is for administrative purposes not a substantial interest holder per WAC 230-03-045. 
** Publicly traded on NASDAQ under DKNG. 
 
Ownership percentages of institutional investors are as of February 23, 2022. 

 
 

Other Jurisdictions Licensed: 
 
DraftKings is licensed in multiple jurisdictions including Pennsylvania, New Jersey, Illinois, Indiana, 
Mississippi, and New York. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Part II 
Licensing Investigations Summary 

 
Special Agents from the Commission’s Licensing and Regulation Units conducted a criminal history 
and financial investigation focusing on funding sources and beneficiaries for suitability in accordance 
with RCW 9.46 and WAC 230.  The investigation included verifying the ownership structure, 
reviewing financial and business records.  The investigation found:  
 
• No unreported people or businesses involved (i.e., substantial interest holders); 
• No undisclosed ownership or undisclosed involvement in other activities/businesses; 
• No disqualifying administrative history; 
• All funding sources were disclosed; and 
• All substantial interest holders qualify to hold a license. 
 
Source of Funds: 
 
The company’s source of funds for the licensing process came from cash on hand from operations. 
 

Part III 
Staff Recommendations 



 
Based upon the criminal history and financial background investigations, staff recommends licensing Crown WA 
Gaming, LLC doing business as DraftKings, with a Major Sports Wagering Vendor license. 

 
Prepared By 
Jennifer LaMont, Agent in Charge 
Licensing Unit 
 

Signature 
 

Date 
August 26, 2022 

 



Washington State Gambling Commission 
Pre-Licensing Report 

Major Sports Wagering Vendor  

Part I 
Licensing/Organization Information 

Type of Approval 
Major Sports Wagering Vendor License  

Trade Name/ Premises Address 
SBTech Malta Limited dba SBTech 
142 Triq Il-Kbira 
Zebbug, Malta ABG1301 

Date of Application 
December 1, 2021 

APPLICANT INFORMATION 
Name 
SBTech Malta Limited dba SBTech 

License Application #  
10-00209 

Business Phone # 
+972-54-7649409 

Mailing Address 
142 Triq Il-Kbira 
Zebbug, Malta ABG1301 

ACTIVE LICENSES ISSUED BY GAMBLING COMMISSION 
Description/Class 
Major Sports Wagering Vendor License 

Exp. Date 
6/30/2023 

License Number(s) 
81-00011 

COMMISSION STAFF 
Licensing Specialist 
Michael Moore 

Special Agents 
Lisa Saila 
Julie Sullivan 
Kevin Maxwell 

 

 
 
Background/Structure 

 
General Information: 
 
SBTech Malta Limited, doing business as SBTech, applied for a Major Sports Wagering Vendor license to 
provide the following services in Washington: 
• Provide a retail sports book with their proprietary software. 
   
 
 
 
 

Ownership/corporate structure: SBTech Malta Limited:  



Title Name % Ownership 
CEO Paul Liberman 0% 
COO Ian Bradley 0% 
CFO Jason Park  0% 
President, 
Director 

Robertus van Oijen 0% 

Shareholder SBTech (Global) Limited 100% 
 Total 100% 

 
SBTech (Global) Limited 

Title Name % Ownership 
CEO Paul Liberman 0% 
COO  Ian Bradley 0% 
CFO Timothy Dent 0% 
Non-Executive 
Director 

Christopher Hall * 0% 

Non-Executive 
Director 

Mark Waterhouse * 0% 

Shareholder DraftKings Holdings, Inc. 100% 
 Total 100% 

 
DraftKings Holdings, Inc. formerly DraftKings, Inc. ( NV)  

Title Name % Ownership 
CEO Jason Robins 0% 
President Paul Liberman 0% 
Secretary, CLO Robert Stanton Dodge * 0% 
CFO, Director Jason Park 0% 
Shareholder DraftKings Inc. 100% 
 TOTAL 100% 

 
DraftKings, Inc. (NV) ** 

Title Name % Ownership 
CEO, Chairman Jason Robins  < 5% 
Secretary, CLO  R. Stanton Dodge * < 5% 
CFO  Jason Park  < 5% 
Director Paul Liberman < 5% 
Director Matthew Kalish < 5% 
Director Woodrow Levin 0% 
Director Steve Murray 0% 
Director Ryan Moore  0% 
Director Marni Walden 0% 
Director Valerie Mosley 0% 
Director Jocelyn Moore 0% 
Director Shalom Meckenzie 0% 
Director Harry Sloan 0% 
Institutional 
Investor 

The Vanguard Group, Inc. *** 6.43% 

Institutional 
Investor 

ARK Investment Management, 
LLC*** 

5.41% 

Stockholders Individually <5% of total 
shares 

63.16% 



 TOTAL 100% 
 
* Not a substantial interest holder per WAC 230-03-045. 
** Publicly traded on NASDAQ under DKNG. 
*** Ownership percentages are as of February 23, 2022. 

 
Other Jurisdictions Licensed: 

 
SBTech is licensed in multiple jurisdictions including Pennsylvania, Indiana, Mississippi, and New Jersey. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Part II 
Licensing Investigations Summary 

 
Special Agents from the Commission’s Licensing Regulation Units conducted a criminal history and 
financial investigation focusing on funding sources and beneficiaries for suitability in accordance with 
RCW 9.46 and WAC 230.  The investigation included verifying the ownership structure, reviewing 
financial and business records.  The investigation found:  
 
• No unreported people or businesses involved (i.e., substantial interest holders); 
• No undisclosed ownership or undisclosed involvement in other activities/businesses; 
• No disqualifying administrative history; 
• All funding sources were disclosed; and 
• All substantial interest holders qualify to hold a license. 
 
Source of Funds: 
 
The company’s source of funds for the licensing process came from cash on hand from its parent 
company, DraftKings. 
 

Part III 
Staff Recommendations 

 
Based upon the criminal history and financial background investigations, staff recommends licensing SBTech Malta 
Limited, doing business as SBTech, with a Major Sports Wagering Vendor license. 

 
Prepared By 
Jennifer LaMont, Agent in Charge 
Licensing Unit 
 

Signature 
 

Date 
August 26, 2022 

 



Washington State Gambling Commission 
Pre-Licensing Report 

Ancillary Sports Wagering Vendor  

Part I 
Licensing/Organization Information 

Type of Approval 
Ancillary Sports Wagering Vendor License  

Trade Name/ Premises Address 
TeleCheck Services, LLC 
1600 Terrell Mill Road 
Marietta, GA  30067 

Date of Application 
January 27, 2022 

APPLICANT INFORMATION 
Name 
TeleCheck Services, LLC 
 

License Application #  
10-00065 

Business Phone # 
(470)751-0981 

Mailing Address 
2900 Westside Parkway 
Alpharetta, GA  30004 

ACTIVE LICENSES ISSUED BY GAMBLING COMMISSION 
Description/Class 
Ancillary Sports Wagering Vendor License 

Exp. Date 
06/30/2023 

License Number(s) 
83-00015 

COMMISSION STAFF 
Licensing Specialist 
Jeanette Warner  

Special Agent 
Donna Khanhasa 

 

 
 

Background/Structure 
 
General Information: 
 
TeleCheck Services, LLC (TeleCheck) was formed in the state of Delaware in October 2008. 
 
TeleCheck has applied for an Ancillary Sports Wagering Vendor license to provide mobile payment 
processing for use in mobile sports wagering. They provide electronic acceptance and warranty services 
for ACH transactions to fund sports wagering.  

 
 

 



Organizational/Ownership Structure: 
   

TeleCheck Services, LLC   
Title Name % Ownership 

President, Secretary, Treasurer, 
CEO, CFO, Manager 

Alain Barbet 0% 

Manager Melanie Bever 0% 
Manager Melanie Alderdice 0% 
Shareholder Telecheck International, LLC* 100% 
 Total 100% 

 
* Telecheck International, LLC, is wholly owned by First Data Corporation, which is wholly owned by Fiserv, 
Inc., which is publicly traded on NASDAQ under ticker FISV.   

 
Because Telecheck Services, LLC, operates autonomously from its parent companies, the only substantial 
interest holders are the officers and managers of Telecheck Services, LLC.   

 
Other Jurisdictions Licensed: 
 
TeleCheck is licensed in several jurisdictions, including Arkansas, Arizona, Indiana, Michigan, New Jersey, 
New York, Pennsylvania, Tennessee, and Virginia.  
 
 

Part II 
Licensing Investigations Summary 

 
A Special Agent from the Commission’s Licensing Unit conducted a criminal history and financial 
investigation focusing on funding sources and beneficiaries for suitability in accordance with RCW 
9.46 and WAC 230.  The investigation included verifying the ownership structure, reviewing financial 
and business records.  The investigation found:  
 
• No unreported people or businesses involved (i.e., substantial interest holders), 
• No undisclosed ownership or undisclosed involvement in other activities/businesses, 
• No disqualifying administrative history, 
• All funding sources were disclosed, and 
• All substantial interest holders qualify to hold a license. 

 
Source of Funds: 
 
TeleCheck Services, LLC, has been registered with Washington Secretary of State’s Office since 1998 for 
providing check warranty services in Washington.  No source of funds investigation was warranted.  Any 
costs associated with starting sports wagering services in Washington will come from cash on hand from 
operations.   
 
 
 
 
 

 
Part III 

Staff Recommendations 



 
Based upon the criminal history and financial background investigations, staff recommends licensing TeleCheck 
Services, LLC, with an Ancillary Sports Wagering Vendor license. 

 
Prepared By 
Jennifer LaMont, Agent in Charge 
Licensing Unit 
 

Signature 
 

Date 
August 29, 2022 

 



HOUSE-BANKED PUBLIC CARD ROOM REPORT

Licensed and Operating  38

Commission 

Approval Date Org #
License

#

License

Expiration

DateCity

ALL STAR CASINO Jan 14, 1999 00-18357 67-00058Jun 30, 2023SILVERDALE

BLACK PEARL RESTAURANT & CARD ROOM Jan 10, 2013 00-22440 67-00321Sep 30, 2022
SPOKANE 

VALLEY

BUZZ INN STEAKHOUSE/EAST WENATCHEE Oct 10, 2002 00-11170 67-00183Dec 31, 2022
EAST 

WENATCHEE

CARIBBEAN CARDROOM Nov 14, 2019 00-24515 67-00343Sep 30, 2022KIRKLAND

CASINO CARIBBEAN Nov 14, 2019 00-24512 67-00341Sep 30, 2022KIRKLAND

CASINO CARIBBEAN Nov 14, 2019 00-24513 67-00342Sep 30, 2022YAKIMA

CHIPS CASINO/LAKEWOOD Apr  8, 1999 00-17414 67-00020Dec 31, 2022LAKEWOOD

CLEARWATER SALOON & CASINO Feb 14, 2019 00-24296 67-00339Dec 31, 2022
EAST 

WENATCHEE

COYOTE BOB'S CASINO Jul 10, 2009 00-21848 67-00282Mar 31, 2023KENNEWICK

CRAZY MOOSE CASINO II/MOUNTLAKE TERRACE Jul 10, 2009 00-21849 67-00283Mar 31, 2023
MOUNTLAKE 

TERRACE

CRAZY MOOSE CASINO/PASCO Jul 10, 2009 00-21847 67-00281Mar 31, 2023PASCO

FORTUNE CASINO - LACEY Jul 14, 2022 00-24868 67-00347Mar 31, 2023LACEY

FORTUNE CASINO - RENTON Jan  8, 2015 00-23339 67-00327Sep 30, 2022RENTON

FORTUNE CASINO - TUKWILA Oct  8, 2015 00-23465 67-00329Jun 30, 2023TUKWILA

GOLDIES SHORELINE CASINO May 13, 1999 00-17610 67-00016Dec 31, 2022SHORELINE

GREAT AMERICAN CASINO/EVERETT Nov 12, 1998 00-19513 67-00194Dec 31, 2022EVERETT

GREAT AMERICAN CASINO/LAKEWOOD Aug 14, 2003 00-19258 67-00184Jun 30, 2023LAKEWOOD

GREAT AMERICAN CASINO/TUKWILA Jan 15, 1998 00-12554 67-00012Sep 30, 2022TUKWILA

IRON HORSE CASINO Jan  9, 2003 00-19477 67-00192Dec 31, 2022AUBURN

JOKER'S CASINO SPORTS BAR & FIESTA CD RM Nov 12, 1998 00-15224 67-00006Dec 31, 2022RICHLAND

LANCER LANES/REST AND CASINO Nov 13, 2008 00-21681 67-00276Sep 30, 2022CLARKSTON

LAST FRONTIER Feb 11, 1999 00-11339 67-00055Sep 30, 2022LA CENTER

Compiled by WSGC Revised 8/23/2022 Page 1 of 3



Licensed and Operating  38

Commission 

Approval Date Org #
License

#

License

Expiration

DateCity

LILAC LANES & CASINO Jul 12, 2007 00-21305 67-00267Jun 30, 2023SPOKANE

MACAU CASINO Nov 14, 2019 00-24514 67-00344Sep 30, 2022TUKWILA

MACAU CASINO Nov 14, 2019 00-24516 67-00345Sep 30, 2022LAKEWOOD

NOB HILL CASINO Sep 12, 2001 00-13069 67-00173Dec 31, 2022YAKIMA

PAPAS CASINO RESTAURANT & LOUNGE Aug 13, 1998 00-02788 67-00004Jun 30, 2023MOSES LAKE

RC'S AT VALLEY LANES Nov 16, 2017 00-16220 67-00336Mar 31, 2023SUNNYSIDE

RIVERSIDE CASINO Aug 14, 2003 00-19369 67-00187Jun 30, 2023TUKWILA

ROMAN CASINO Feb 10, 2000 00-17613 67-00057Mar 31, 2023SEATTLE

ROXY'S BAR & GRILL Nov 18, 2004 00-20113 67-00231Jun 30, 2023SEATTLE

SILVER DOLLAR CASINO/MILL CREEK Sep  9, 2010 00-22131 67-00302Jun 30, 2023BOTHELL

SILVER DOLLAR CASINO/RENTON Sep  9, 2010 00-22134 67-00305Jun 30, 2023RENTON

SILVER DOLLAR CASINO/SEATAC Sep  9, 2010 00-22128 67-00299Jun 30, 2023SEATAC

SLO PITCH PUB & EATERY Aug 12, 1999 00-16759 67-00038Jun 30, 2023BELLINGHAM

THE PALACE Apr  9, 1998 00-16903 67-00010Jun 30, 2023LA CENTER

WILD GOOSE CASINO Apr  8, 2004 00-20009 67-00212Dec 31, 2022ELLENSBURG

ZEPPOZ Nov 13, 2008 00-18777 67-00209Mar 31, 2023PULLMAN

Licensed but Not Currently Operating  4

Commission 

Approval Date Org #
License

#

License

Expiration

DateCity

EMERALD DOWNS May 11, 2017 00-23814 67-00335Mar 31, 2023AUBURN

LUCKY DRAGONZ CASINO Mar 10, 2022 00-23001 67-00323Jun 30, 2023SEATTLE

ROYAL CASINO Sep  9, 2010 00-22130 67-00301Jun 30, 2023EVERETT

WIZARDS CASINO Feb 11, 2010 00-21998 67-00287Dec 31, 2022BURIEN

Compiled by WSGC Revised 8/23/2022 Page 2 of 3



Applications Pending  2

Commission 

Approval Date Org #
License

#

License

Expiration

DateCity

IMPERIAL PALACE CASINO 00-24893 67-00348TUKWILA

NEW PHOENIX 00-24981 67-00349LA CENTER

Compiled by WSGC Revised 8/23/2022 Page 3 of 3



Washington State Gambling Commission 
Pre-Licensing Report 

Individual Operating in more than one  
Non-profit Organization 

Part I 
Licensing/Organization Information 

Type of Approval 
Non-profit officer working for multiple 
organizations 

Organization 
FOE AUX 03004 00-04637 
FOE 03004 00-00593 

Date of Application 
08/02/2021 

APPLICANT INFORMATION 
Name 
FOE AUX 03004 

License Application #  
00-04637 

Business Phone # 
(509) 422-1936 

Address 
1820 2nd Ave N 
Okanogan, WA 98840 

ACTIVE LICENSES ISSUED BY GAMBLING COMMISSION 
Description/Class 
Non-Profit Gambling Manager 

Exp. Date 
1/20/2023 

License Number(s) 
61-04613 

COMMISSION STAFF 
Licensing Specialist 
Rose Guzman 

Special Agents 
 
 

 
General Information: 
Shannon Statler is currently a licensed nonprofit gambling manager for FOE 03004. We received a new 
application for a raffle license from FOE AUX 03004 non-profit organization, of which, Ms. Statler is the 
Secretary. We received a request to allow Ms. Statler to take part in the management or operations of 
any such gambling activity for both organizations.  We do not have a WAC rule allowing or prohibiting her 
to take part in the management or operation of any gambling activity for multiple organizations.  RCW 
9.46.120 does not allow her to manage the operation of gambling activities at multiple organizations 
unless approved by the commission. 
 

  



Part II 
Licensing Investigations Summary 

    
Commission’s Licensing Unit conducted a criminal records investigation.  The investigation found 
no disqualifying information. 

Part III 
Staff Recommendations 

 
Based upon the licensing investigation, staff recommends allowing Shannon Statler to take part in the 
management or operation of any such gambling activity for multiple organizations in accordance with 
RCW 9.46.120. 
Prepared By 
Jennifer LaMont, Agent in Charge 
Licensing Unit 

Signature 
 

Date 
August 24, 2022 

 



 CONTACT Julie Anderson (360) 280-3937 
Revised 08/23/2022  Julie.anderson@wsgc.wa.gov  

WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 
Revised 2022 Commission Meeting Schedule 

 
January 13th & 14th   Gambling Commission  
Thursday & Friday  Lacey, WA (Virtual) 
 
February 7th  Special Gambling Commission  
Monday  Lacey, WA  (Virtual) 
     
March 10th & 11th   Gambling Commission  
Thursday & Friday  Lacey, WA (Virtual) 
   
April 14th & 15th   Gambling Commission  
Thursday & Friday  Lacey, WA  (Virtual) 
 
May 12th & 13th   Gambling Commission  
Thursday & Friday  Lacey, WA    (Hybrid) 
     
June 9th & 10th    Canceled  Gambling Commission 
 
July 14th and 15th              Liquor Cannabis Board  
Thursday & Friday  The Union Tower Building 
  1025 Union Avenue SE 
  Olympia, WA    (Hybrid) 
   
August 11th & 12th   Liquor Cannabis Board  
Thursday & Friday  The Union Tower Building 
  1025 Union Avenue SE 
  Olympia, WA    (Hybrid) 
 
September 8th & 9th   Liquor Cannabis Board  
Thursday & Friday  The Union Tower Building 
  1025 Union Avenue SE 
  Olympia, WA    (Hybrid) 
 
October 6th & 7th Meeting   Liquor Cannabis Board 
Thursday & Friday   The Union Tower Building 
  1025 Union Avenue SE 
  Olympia, WA    (Hybrid) 
November Meeting 
Wednesday, Nov. 9th  - Gambling Commission, 4565 7th Avenue SE, Lacey, WA  (Hybrid) 
Thursday, Nov. 10th  - Liquor Cannabis Board, 1025 Union Avenue SE, Olympia, WA (Hybrid) 
  
December    NO MEETING 
Beginning with the  May 2022 commission meeting, all future commission meetings will be a hybrid model 
whereby the public will be able to attend the meetings virtually or in person at the address provided.  

mailto:Julie.anderson@wsgc.wa.gov








1 
 

 
STATE OF WASHINGTON 

GAMBLING COMMISSION 
“Protect the Public by Ensuring that Gambling is Legal and Honest” 

 

September 2, 2022 

 

TO:          COMMISSIONERS    EX OFFICIO MEMBERS 

Alicia Levy, Chair     Senator Steve Conway 
Julia Patterson, Vice-Chair    Senator Jeff Holy 
Bud Sizemore     Representative Shelley Kloba 
Kristine Reeves     Representative Brandon Vick 
Sarah Lawson 

FROM:        Tommy Oakes, Special Agent Supervisor / Interim Legislative Liaison 

SUBJECT:  2023 Agency Request Legislation Update 

 

At our July meeting, you voted to move forward with the agency request legislation for a 
technical fix to E2SSB 5051 clarifying certification and training requirements for the limited 
authority law enforcement officers of the Gambling Commission, Liquor and Cannabis Board, 
Office of Insurance Commissioner, Department of Natural Resources, and State Parks. 

Our deadline to submit this agency request legislation to the Governor’s Office through the Bill 
Enrollment and Agency Request System (BEARS) is Friday, September 16, 2022. 

I have included with this memo our narrative responses to the 2023 Agency Request 
Legislation submission form in BEARS along with the proposed bill language. I will ask you 
to take final action and approve this package for submission to the Governor’s Office.  

The attached proposal will amend certain sections of RCW 43.101 to allow limited authority 
Washington peace officers of these five agencies who, as part of their normal duty, have powers 
of arrest and carry a firearm to be certified and trained by WSCJTC. This bill also allows 
officers working for the above five limited authority Washington law enforcement agencies, 
who were previously trained in law enforcement, to be brought into the certification process 
without impacting the basic law enforcement academy (BLEA).  

Staff reached out to stakeholders, tribal partners, other agencies, and law enforcement groups 
requesting feedback be provided by September 1, 2022. We have also reached out to legislators 
involved in the process of writing E2SSB 5051. I will brief you on any feedback received at 
our September public meeting. 

  



2 
 

 
STATE OF WASHINGTON 

GAMBLING COMMISSION 
“Protect the Public by Ensuring that Gambling is Legal and Honest” 

 

 

Agency Name:   Washington State Gambling Commission 

Agency Contact: Tommy Oakes, Special Agent Supervisor / Interim 
Legislative Liaison 

Short Title: Technical fix of limited authority peace officers in 
E2SSB 5051 

 

BEARS QUESTIONNAIRE NARRATIVE 
SUBMISSION PROPOSAL 

STATEMENT OF NEED 
This request is tied to the Governor’s Priorities of Justice and Safety. In 2021, Engrossed 
Second Substitute Senate Bill 5051 (E2SSB 5051) was passed into law. It addressed a public 
policy concern by requiring all peace officers and corrections officers to obtain and maintain 
certification that could be denied, suspended, or revoked by the Washington State Criminal 
Justice Training Commission (WSCJTC) and adhere to set standards for hiring and training. 

Limited authority Washington peace officers as defined in RCW 10.93.020, such as ours, are 
not required to be certified or trained by WSCJTC under E2SSB 5051. Due to the nature of our 
work, our limited authority Washington peace officers (“officers”) are armed, make arrests, 
and serve or assist in the service of search and arrest warrants.  

While most limited authority Washington law enforcement agencies adhere to state training 
guidelines set forth for general authority agencies, limited authority Washington law 
enforcement agencies are not required to do so. This legislative proposal seeks to change that 
by having limited authority Washington peace officers, as defined in RCW 10.93.020 who, as 
a normal part of their duties, have powers of arrest and carry a firearm be certified and trained 
by WSCJTC to Washington state standards. This legislation would apply to officers of the 
Gambling Commission, Liquor and Cannabis Board, Office of Insurance Commissioner, 
Department of Natural Resources, and State Parks. All these agencies worked together to draft 
this bill.  

This proposed legislation is not intended to expand the authority of these agencies but to align 
the training and certification standards that Washington leaders identified as a key component 
of police reform in 2021. 



3 
 

RELEVANT GOVERNOR’S PRIORITY ITEM 
Justice & Safety 

SUMMARY OF MAJOR PROVISIONS 
This bill would amend certain sections of RCW 43.101 to allow limited authority peace officers 
of the Gambling Commission, Liquor and Cannabis Board, Office of Insurance Commissioner, 
Department of Natural Resources, and State Parks who, as part of their normal duties, have 
powers of arrest and carry a firearm be certified and trained by the WSCJTC. This bill also 
allows current officers working for these limited authority law enforcement agencies who were 
previously trained in law enforcement to be brought into the certification process without 
impacting the basic law enforcement academy (BLEA). This bill allows for the uniform 
training and certification of limited authority law enforcement officers to align with general 
authority officers without changing the authority of these officers.  

CHANGES IN CURRENT LAW 
Currently, there are no training requirements for limited authority law enforcement peace 
officers, nor are they certified by the WSCJTC. This bill would require WSCJTC to train and 
certify the limited authority law enforcement peace officers of the Gambling Commission, 
Liquor and Cannabis Board, Office of Insurance Commissioner, Department of Natural 
Resources, and State Parks. 

STAKEHOLDER ANALYSIS 
The Gambling Commission sent an email containing a letter and the draft bill language to fifty-
eight stakeholder groups. This included representatives of each tribal government, owners of 
operating House Banked Card Rooms licensed by us, and law enforcement groups. WASPC is 
in support of this legislation. We did not receive any other stakeholder’s formal feedback.  

Stakeholders and tribal partners were asked to provide feedback on this proposal by September 
1, 2022. 

This proposed legislation was originally presented to the agency’s Commissioners at the 
Gambling Commission’s May 2022, open public meeting with stakeholders and licensees in 
attendance.  We held meetings with stakeholders and tribal partners to discuss this legislation 
in June of 2022.  

EQUITY CONSIDERATION QUESTIONS 

Who is the target population or community that will benefit by the proposed legislation? 
How will the population/community benefit? 
The target population is all residents of Washington. By having limited authority law 
enforcement officers of the Gambling Commission, Liquor and Cannabis Board, Office of 
Insurance Commissioner, Department of Natural Resources, and State Parks certified and 
trained by WSCJTC there will be accountability that is not currently present. 



4 
 

Describe how your agency conducted community outreach and engagement by 
relationally partnering with communities and populations who have historically been 
excluded and marginalized by governmental decisions. 
This trailer bill to E2SSB 5051 is a culmination of feedback we have seen and heard from 
communities and populations who have historically been excluded and marginalized by 
governmental decisions. That feedback consistently showed the public’s desire for all law 
enforcement officers to be certified and trained to one standard. This trailer bill will include 
limited authority law enforcement officers of the Gambling Commission, Liquor and Cannabis 
Board, Office of Insurance Commissioner, Department of Natural Resources, and State Parks 
in the certification and training process established in E2SSB 5051. 

In addition to the original bill’s outreach, we also contacted our tribal partners through meetings 
and with letters asking for their feedback, as well as meeting with WSCJTC staff and some of 
their commissioners to get feedback.  We have worked with legislators that sponsored E2SSB 
5051 throughout the writing of this bill to ensure that this bill meets the intent and feedback 
they received on the original bill. 

Please describe how your agency revised the proposed legislation based upon the 
feedback provided through your community outreach and engagement. 
This bill was built based on feedback received from E2SSB 5051. 

Is there a target population or community that is not included, would be marginalized 
and/or disproportionately impacted? If so, please explain why and how the exclusion will 
be addressed. 
No. 

Describe impacts the proposed legislation could have on the communities and populations 
who have been included and excluded and/or marginalized. 
This bill will allow the WSCJTC to regulate limited authority peace officers of the Gambling 
Commission, Liquor and Cannabis Board, Office of Insurance Commissioner, Department of 
Natural Resources, and State Parks the same way they regulate general authority law 
enforcement and correction officers. The consistency will benefit communities and populations 
who have been included and excluded and/or marginalized. The officers of the Gambling 
Commission, Liquor and Cannabis Board, Office of Insurance Commissioner, Department of 
Natural Resources, and State Parks will be held accountable to the people they serve. 

Attachments 
• Z-0026.3 
• AGO Memo 



BILL REQUEST - CODE REVISER'S OFFICE

BILL REQ. #: Z-0026.3/23 3rd draft
ATTY/TYPIST: RB:akl
BRIEF DESCRIPTION: Concerning a technical fix of limited authority 

peace officers in E2SSB 5051 relating to state 
oversight and accountability of peace officers 
and corrections officers.



AN ACT Relating to a technical fix of limited authority peace 1
officers in E2SSB 5051 relating to state oversight and accountability 2
of peace officers and corrections officers; amending RCW 43.101.095, 3
43.101.276, and 43.101.278; reenacting and amending RCW 43.101.010 4
and 43.101.200; and adding a new section to chapter 43.101 RCW.5

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON:6

Sec. 1.  RCW 43.101.010 and 2021 c 323 s 1 are each reenacted and 7
amended to read as follows:8

When used in this chapter:9
(1) "Applicant" means an individual who has received a 10

conditional offer of employment with a law enforcement or corrections 11
agency.12

(2) "Chief for a day program" means a program in which 13
commissioners and staff partner with local, state, and federal law 14
enforcement agencies, hospitals, and the community to provide a day 15
of special attention to chronically ill children. Each child is 16
selected and sponsored by a law enforcement agency. The event, "chief 17
for a day," occurs on one day, annually or every other year and may 18
occur on the grounds and in the facilities of the commission. The 19
program may include any appropriate honoring of the child as a 20
"chief," such as a certificate swearing them in as a chief, a badge, 21
Code Rev/RB:akl 1 Z-0026.3/23 3rd draft



a uniform, and donated gifts such as games, puzzles, and art 1
supplies.2

(3) "Commission" means the Washington state criminal justice 3
training commission.4

(4) "Convicted" means at the time a plea of guilty, nolo 5
contendere, or deferred sentence has been accepted, or a verdict of 6
guilty or finding of guilt has been filed, notwithstanding the 7
pendency of any future proceedings, including but not limited to 8
sentencing, posttrial or postfact-finding motions and appeals. 9
"Conviction" includes all instances in which a plea of guilty or nolo 10
contendere is the basis for conviction, all proceedings in which 11
there is a case disposition agreement, and any equivalent disposition 12
by a court in a jurisdiction other than the state of Washington.13

(5) "Correctional personnel" means any employee or volunteer who 14
by state, county, municipal, or combination thereof, statute has the 15
responsibility for the confinement, care, management, training, 16
treatment, education, supervision, or counseling of those individuals 17
whose civil rights have been limited in some way by legal sanction.18

(6) "Corrections officer" means any corrections agency employee 19
whose primary job function is to provide for the custody, safety, and 20
security of adult persons in jails and detention facilities in the 21
state. "Corrections officer" does not include individuals employed by 22
state agencies.23

(7) "Criminal justice personnel" means any person who serves as a 24
peace officer, reserve officer, or corrections officer.25

(8) "Finding" means a determination based on a preponderance of 26
the evidence whether alleged misconduct occurred; did not occur; 27
occurred, but was consistent with law and policy; or could neither be 28
proven or disproven.29

(9) "Law enforcement personnel" means any person elected, 30
appointed, or employed as a general authority Washington peace 31
officer or as a limited authority Washington peace officer as defined 32
in RCW 10.93.020 who as a normal part of their duties have powers of 33
arrest and carry a firearm.34

(10) "Peace officer" has the same meaning as a general authority 35
Washington peace officer as defined in RCW 10.93.020. Commissioned 36
officers of the Washington state patrol, whether they have been or 37
may be exempted by rule of the commission from the basic training 38
requirement of RCW 43.101.200, are included as peace officers for 39
purposes of this chapter. Fish and wildlife officers with enforcement 40
Code Rev/RB:akl 2 Z-0026.3/23 3rd draft



powers for all criminal laws under RCW 77.15.075 are peace officers 1
for purposes of this chapter. Limited authority Washington peace 2
officers as defined in RCW 10.93.020, who have powers of arrest and 3
carry a firearm as part of their normal duty, are peace officers for 4
purposes of this chapter.5

(11) "Reserve officer" means any person who does not serve as a 6
peace officer of this state on a full-time basis, but who, when 7
called by an agency into active service, is fully commissioned on the 8
same basis as full-time officers to enforce the criminal laws of this 9
state and includes:10

(a) Specially commissioned Washington peace officers as defined 11
in RCW 10.93.020;12

(b) ((Limited authority Washington peace officers as defined in 13
RCW 10.93.020;14

(c))) Persons employed as security by public institutions of 15
higher education as defined in RCW 28B.10.016; and16

(((d))) (c) Persons employed for the purpose of providing 17
security in the K-12 Washington state public school system as defined 18
in RCW 28A.150.010 and who are authorized to use force in fulfilling 19
their responsibilities.20

(12) "Tribal police officer" means any person employed and 21
commissioned by a tribal government to enforce the criminal laws of 22
that government.23

Sec. 2.  RCW 43.101.200 and 2021 c 334 s 977 and 2021 c 323 s 31 24
are each reenacted and amended to read as follows:25

(1) All law enforcement personnel, except volunteers, and reserve 26
officers whether paid or unpaid, initially employed on or after 27
January 1, 1978, shall engage in basic law enforcement training which 28
complies with standards adopted by the commission pursuant to RCW 29
43.101.080. For personnel initially employed before January 1, 1990, 30
such training shall be successfully completed during the first 31
fifteen months of employment of such personnel unless otherwise 32
extended or waived by the commission and shall be requisite to the 33
continuation of such employment. Personnel initially employed on or 34
after January 1, 1990, shall commence basic training during the first 35
six months of employment unless the basic training requirement is 36
otherwise waived or extended by the commission. Successful completion 37
of basic training is requisite to the continuation of employment of 38
such personnel initially employed on or after January 1, 1990.39
Code Rev/RB:akl 3 Z-0026.3/23 3rd draft



(2)(a) All limited authority Washington peace officers as defined 1
in RCW 10.93.020, who have powers of arrest and carry a firearm as 2
part of their normal duties, whose employment commences on or after 3
July 1, 2023, shall engage in basic law enforcement training which 4
complies with the standards adopted by the commission pursuant to RCW 5
43.101.080 unless waived by the commission. Basic law enforcement 6
training must commence at the commission's discretion, but no later 7
than one year from date of employment.8

(b) The commission shall review the training files of the limited 9
authority Washington peace officers whose employment commenced prior 10
to July 1, 2023, who have not successfully completed training that 11
complies with standards adopted by the commission to determine what, 12
if any, supplemental training is required to appropriately carry out 13
the duties and responsibilities of the officers. Nothing in this 14
subsection may be interpreted to require limited authority Washington 15
peace officers, who have had prior law enforcement training, and 16
whose employment commenced prior to July 1, 2023, to complete the 17
basic law enforcement training academy as a condition of continuing 18
employment as a limited authority Washington peace officer.19

(3) Except as provided in RCW 43.101.170, the commission shall 20
provide the aforementioned training and shall have the sole authority 21
to do so. The commission shall provide necessary facilities, 22
supplies, materials, and the board and room of noncommuting attendees 23
for seven days per week, except during the 2017-2019, 2019-2021, and 24
2021-2023 fiscal biennia when the employing, county, city, or state 25
law enforcement agency shall reimburse the commission for twenty-five 26
percent of the cost of training its personnel. Additionally, to the 27
extent funds are provided for this purpose, the commission shall 28
reimburse to participating law enforcement agencies with ten or less 29
full-time commissioned patrol officers the cost of temporary 30
replacement of each officer who is enrolled in basic law enforcement 31
training: PROVIDED, That such reimbursement shall include only the 32
actual cost of temporary replacement not to exceed the total amount 33
of salary and benefits received by the replaced officer during his or 34
her training period:35

PROVIDED FURTHER, That limited authority Washington law 36
enforcement agencies as defined in RCW 10.93.020 shall reimburse the 37
commission for the full cost of training their personnel.38

Code Rev/RB:akl 4 Z-0026.3/23 3rd draft



Sec. 3.  RCW 43.101.095 and 2021 c 323 s 8 are each amended to 1
read as follows:2

(1) As a condition of employment, all Washington peace officers 3
and corrections officers are required to obtain certification as a 4
peace officer or corrections officer or exemption therefrom and 5
maintain certification as required by this chapter and the rules of 6
the commission.7

(2)(a) Any applicant who has been offered a conditional offer of 8
employment as a peace officer or reserve officer or offered a 9
conditional offer of employment as a corrections officer after July 10
1, 2021, or limited authority Washington peace officers as defined in 11
RCW 10.93.020, who have powers of arrest and carry a firearm as part 12
of their normal duties offered a conditional offer of employment as a 13
peace officer after July 1, 2023, including any person whose 14
certification has lapsed as a result of a break of more than 24 15
consecutive months in the officer's service for a reason other than 16
being recalled to military service, must submit to a background 17
investigation to determine the applicant's suitability for 18
employment. Employing agencies may only make a conditional offer of 19
employment pending completion of the background check and shall 20
verify in writing to the commission that they have complied with all 21
background check requirements prior to making any nonconditional 22
offer of employment.23

(b) The background check must include:24
(i) A check of criminal history, any national decertification 25

index, commission records, and all disciplinary records by any 26
previous law enforcement or correctional employer, including 27
complaints or investigations of misconduct and the reason for 28
separation from employment. Law enforcement or correctional agencies 29
that previously employed the applicant shall disclose employment 30
information within 30 days of receiving a written request from the 31
employing agency conducting the background investigation, including 32
the reason for the officer's separation from the agency. Complaints 33
or investigations of misconduct must be disclosed regardless of the 34
result of the investigation or whether the complaint was unfounded;35

(ii) Inquiry to the local prosecuting authority in any 36
jurisdiction in which the applicant has served as to whether the 37
applicant is on any potential impeachment disclosure list;38

Code Rev/RB:akl 5 Z-0026.3/23 3rd draft



(iii) Inquiry into whether the applicant has any past or present 1
affiliations with extremist organizations, as defined by the 2
commission;3

(iv) A review of the applicant's social media accounts;4
(v) Verification of immigrant or citizenship status as either a 5

citizen of the United States of America or a lawful permanent 6
resident;7

(vi) A psychological examination administered by a psychiatrist 8
licensed in the state of Washington pursuant to chapter 18.71 RCW or 9
a psychologist licensed in the state of Washington pursuant to 10
chapter 18.83 RCW, in compliance with standards established in rules 11
of the commission;12

(vii) A polygraph or similar assessment administered by an 13
experienced professional with appropriate training and in compliance 14
with standards established in rules of the commission; and15

(viii) Except as otherwise provided in this section, any test or 16
assessment to be administered as part of the background investigation 17
shall be administered in compliance with standards established in 18
rules of the commission.19

(c) The commission may establish standards for the background 20
check requirements in this section and any other preemployment 21
background check requirement that may be imposed by an employing 22
agency or the commission.23

(d) The employing law enforcement agency may require that each 24
person who is required to take a psychological examination and a 25
polygraph or similar test pay a portion of the testing fee based on 26
the actual cost of the test or $400, whichever is less. Employing 27
agencies may establish a payment plan if they determine that the 28
person does not readily have the means to pay the testing fee.29

(3) The commission shall allow a peace officer or corrections 30
officer to retain status as a certified peace officer or corrections 31
officer as long as the officer: (a) Timely meets the basic training 32
requirements, or is exempted therefrom, in whole or in part, under 33
RCW 43.101.200 or under rule of the commission; (b) timely meets or 34
is exempted from any other requirements under this chapter as 35
administered under the rules adopted by the commission; (c) is not 36
denied certification by the commission under this chapter; and (d) 37
has not had certification suspended or revoked by the commission.38

(4) As a condition of certification, a peace officer or 39
corrections officer must, on a form devised or adopted by the 40
Code Rev/RB:akl 6 Z-0026.3/23 3rd draft



commission, authorize the release to the employing agency and 1
commission of the officer's personnel files, including disciplinary, 2
termination, civil or criminal investigation, or other records or 3
information that are directly related to a certification matter or 4
decertification matter before the commission. The peace officer or 5
corrections officer must also consent to and facilitate a review of 6
the officer's social media accounts, however, consistent with RCW 7
49.44.200, the officer is not required to provide login information. 8
The release of information may not be delayed, limited, or precluded 9
by any agreement or contract between the officer, or the officer's 10
union, and the entity responsible for the records or information.11

(5) The employing agency and commission are authorized to receive 12
criminal history record information that includes nonconviction data 13
for any purpose associated with employment or certification under 14
this chapter. Dissemination or use of nonconviction data for purposes 15
other than that authorized in this section is prohibited.16

(6) For a national criminal history records check, the commission 17
shall require fingerprints be submitted and searched through the 18
Washington state patrol identification and criminal history section. 19
The Washington state patrol shall forward the fingerprints to the 20
federal bureau of investigation.21

(7) Prior to certification, the employing agency shall certify to 22
the commission that the agency has completed the background check, no 23
information has been found that would disqualify the applicant from 24
certification, and the applicant is suitable for employment as a 25
peace officer or corrections officer.26

Sec. 4.  RCW 43.101.276 and 2017 c 290 s 5 are each amended to 27
read as follows:28

(1) Subject to the availability of amounts appropriated for this 29
specific purpose, the commission shall develop training on a victim-30
centered, trauma-informed approach to interacting with victims and 31
responding to sexual assault calls. The curriculum must: Be designed 32
for commissioned patrol officers not regularly assigned to 33
investigate sexual assault cases; be designed for deployment and use 34
within individual law enforcement agencies; include features allowing 35
for it to be used in different environments, which may include 36
multimedia or video components; allow for law enforcement agencies to 37
host it in small segments at different times over several days or 38
weeks, including roll calls. The training must include components on 39
Code Rev/RB:akl 7 Z-0026.3/23 3rd draft



available resources for victims including, but not limited to, 1
material on and references to community-based victim advocates.2

(2) In developing the training, the commission shall seek advice 3
from the Washington association of sheriffs and police chiefs, the 4
Washington coalition of sexual assault programs, and experts on 5
sexual assault and the neurobiology of trauma.6

(3) Beginning in 2018, all law enforcement agencies shall 7
annually host the training for commissioned peace officers. All law 8
enforcement agencies shall, to the extent feasible, consult with and 9
feature local community-based victim advocates during the training.10

(4) The training requirements under this section do not apply to 11
limited authority Washington law enforcement agencies as defined in 12
RCW 10.93.020 whose authority does not include the investigation of 13
sexual assaults.14

Sec. 5.  RCW 43.101.278 and 2021 c 118 s 3 are each amended to 15
read as follows:16

(1) Subject to the availability of amounts appropriated for this 17
specific purpose, the commission shall conduct an annual case review 18
program. The program must review case files from law enforcement 19
agencies and prosecuting attorneys selected by the commission in 20
order to identify changes to training and investigatory practices 21
necessary to optimize outcomes in sexual assault investigations and 22
prosecutions involving adult victims. The program must include:23

(a) An evaluation of whether current training and practices 24
foster a trauma-informed, victim-centered approach to victim 25
interviews and that identifies best practices and current gaps in 26
training and assesses the integration of the community resiliency 27
model;28

(b) A comparison of cases involving investigators and 29
interviewers who have participated in training to cases involving 30
investigators and interviewers who have not participated in training;31

(c) Randomly selected cases for a systematic review to assess 32
whether current practices conform to national best practices for a 33
multidisciplinary approach to investigating sexual assault cases and 34
interacting with survivors; and35

(d) An analysis of the impact that race and ethnicity have on 36
sexual assault case outcomes.37

(2) The case review program may review and access files, 38
including all reports and recordings, pertaining to closed cases 39
Code Rev/RB:akl 8 Z-0026.3/23 3rd draft



involving allegations of adult sexual assault only. Any law 1
enforcement agency or prosecuting attorney selected for the program 2
by the commission shall make requested case files and other documents 3
available to the commission, provided that the case files are not 4
linked to ongoing, open investigations and that redactions may be 5
made where appropriate and necessary. Agencies and prosecuting 6
attorneys shall include available information on the race and 7
ethnicity of all sexual assault victims in the relevant case files 8
provided to the commission. Case files and other documents must be 9
made available to the commission according to appropriate deadlines 10
established by the commission in consultation with the agency or 11
prosecuting attorney.12

(3) If a law enforcement agency has not participated in the 13
training under RCW 43.101.272 by July 1, 2022, the commission may 14
prioritize the agency for selection to participate in the program 15
under this section.16

(4) In designing and conducting the program, the commission shall 17
consult and collaborate with experts in trauma-informed and victim-18
centered training, experts in sexual assault investigations and 19
prosecutions, victim advocates, and other stakeholders identified by 20
the commission. The commission may form a multidisciplinary working 21
group for the purpose of carrying out the requirements of this 22
section.23

(5) The program participation requirements under this section do 24
not apply to limited authority Washington law enforcement agencies as 25
defined in RCW 10.93.020 whose authority does not include the 26
investigation of sexual assaults.27

(6) The commission shall submit a report with a summary of its 28
work to the governor and the appropriate committees of the 29
legislature by December 1st of each year.30

NEW SECTION.  Sec. 6.  A new section is added to chapter 43.101 31
RCW to read as follows:32

Limited authority Washington peace officers, as defined in RCW 33
10.93.020, who have powers of arrest and carry a firearm as part of 34
their normal duties will be exempted from completing the basic law 35
enforcement academy or an equivalent basic academy upon transferring 36
to a general authority Washington law enforcement agency or limited 37
authority Washington law enforcement agency, as defined in RCW 38
10.93.020, if they have:39
Code Rev/RB:akl 9 Z-0026.3/23 3rd draft



(1) Been employed as a special agent with the Washington state 1
gambling commission, natural resource investigator of the department 2
of natural resources, liquor enforcement officer with the liquor and 3
cannabis board, investigator with the office of the insurance 4
commissioner, or park ranger with the Washington state parks and 5
recreation commission, before or after July 1, 2023; and6

(2) Received a certificate of successful completion from the 7
basic law enforcement academy or the basic law enforcement 8
equivalency academy and thereafter engaged in regular and 9
commissioned law enforcement employment with an agency listed in 10
subsection (1) of this section without a break or interruption in 11
excess of 24 months' duration; and12

(3) Remained current with the in-service 24-hour training 13
requirements as adopted by the commission by rule.14

--- END ---

Code Rev/RB:akl 10 Z-0026.3/23 3rd draft



 
Bob Ferguson 

ATTORNEY GENERAL OF WASHINGTON 
Government Compliance & Enforcement Division 

PO Box 40100  ●  Olympia, WA  98504-0100  ●  (360) 664-9006 
 
 

M E M O R A N D U M  
 
DATE: September 6, 2022 
  
TO: Tina Griffin, Interim Director 

Washington State Gambling Commission 
  
FROM: Suzanne Becker, Assistant Attorney General 

Office of the Attorney General, GCE Division, MS 40100 
  
SUBJECT: Z-0026.3 – Concerning a technical fix of limited authority peace officers in 

E2SSB 5051 relating to state oversight and accountability of peace officers 
and corrections officers 

 
 
Thank you for providing me with the opportunity to review this proposed legislation. I 
understand that the purpose of the proposed legislation is to modify Chapter 43.101 RCW in 
order to implement a technical fix requiring that certain limited authority Washington peace 
officers engage in basic law enforcement training. 
 
I did not identify any legal prohibitions with this proposed legislation. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
THE OPINIONS EXPRESSED HEREIN ARE THOSE OF THE AUTHOR ONLY, AND ARE 

NOT AN OFFICIAL OPINION OF THE OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL 
 
SB:ds 
cc: Matt Kernutt, Section Chief 



State Problem 
Gambling 

Program Update

WA State Gambling Commission 

Public Meeting 
September 2022

Roxane Waldron, Manager 

State Problem Gambling Program 

1



PG Task Force – Timeline – Revised  

2

Prevalence Study 
Report

Oct 2022
(extended)

-------



Adult PG Prevalence Survey  

AREAS OF FOCUS 

1) Beliefs and attitudes towards gambling 

2) Gambling behavior & preferences 

3) Awareness of problem gambling treatment services

4) Level of risk for problem gambling (prevalence for WA State residents)

5) Overlap with prevalence of mental health & substance use issues

6) Online gambling: Prevalence, methods and modes**

**added by Problem Gambling Task Force 

3



Availability of gambling (All Adults)

4

Too widely available Not available enough Current availability is fine

N=All respondents



Harms vs. benefits of gambling  (All adults)

5



Impact of COVID-19 pandemic on gambling 
(Adults who gambled in past 12 months)

Gambled

No impact Gambled less Gambled More

*self-reported

Q: What impact, if 
any, has the COVID 
pandemic had on 
your overall gambling 
behavior in the past 
12 months?

(N=3642) (Q26)

6



All Adults, Gambling, & Problem Gambling

7

Didn't gamble in past 12 months (56.5%)

Gambled -- No or low risk for problem gambling (42%)

Gambled --Moderate to severe risk for problem gambling/Gambling Disorder (1.5%)

43.5% --
Gambled in 
past 12 
months (all 
risk levels)

56.5% -- Did 
not gamble 
in past 12 
months

N=8798
Weighted
(revised) 



Gambling & Problem Gambling

8

Gambled -- Not currently at risk for problem gambling / PGSI = 0 (79.3%)

Gambled -- Low risk for problem gambling / PGSI = 1-4 (17.2%)

Gambled -- Moderate-to-high risk for problem gambling / PGSI = 5+ (3.5%)

3.5% -- Gambled in past 12 months 
and at moderate-to-severe risk for 
problem gambling/Gambling 
Disorder)

17.2% -- Gambled in past 12 
months and at low risk for problem 
gambling 

79.3% -- Gambled in past 
12 months and not at risk 
for problem gambling/ 
Gambling Disorder 

N=3824
Weighted –
no missing 



Who is at greater risk for moderate-to-severe 
problem gambling? (PGSI score 5+)

Black, Indigenous & People of Color (BIPOC) are at
double the risk than ‘White’ (6% vs. 2.8%) 

Note: Physical disability, gender, age, marital status, 
military status, employment status, region were not     
detectable as a significant factor for problem gambling 

9



Online gambling* 

10

Gambled in brick & mortar only (88.5%)

Gambled  Online  11.5% (most also gambled in brick & mortar too)

*Notes: 
1) Online gambling was illegal during the 

survey data collection period (legal sports 
wagering in Tribal casinos did not open until 
Sept 2021)

2) Chart revised in 8-2022 to include only 
those who responded ‘Yes’ to Q21 (Gambled 
online) 

N=4081



Legal Sports wagering -- considerations

Specific consumer protections (examples)
Time limits

Deposit limits (daily, weekly, monthly)

Win/Loss limits

Give real time updates on how time & money is being spent/lost

Clock always prominently displayed on screen

Ability to self-exclude online 

‘Cool off’ options

Ability to unsubscribe to marketing (while still holding account)

Operators should not be allowed to offer ‘credit lines’ 

11



Legal Sports wagering (continued)

Ensure sports wagering is directly taxed based on a percentage of net  
revenue at a rate which sufficiently addresses the impacts 

Enact a Sports Bettor’s Bill of Rights (similar to Virginia’s)

Include the ‘gold standard’ for statute language:
Funding for problem gambling services, to include prevention, treatment, 
recovery,  education/outreach/awareness, clinical training, and research

Advertising guidelines to minimize/ban around Youth & colleges

Not use the term, ‘risk-free’

Require that the 1-800-GAMBLER national Helpline # be included (for 
ads) 

12



WA State Problem Gambling Program 
(DBHR/HCA)

Roxane Waldron, Manager
roxane.waldron@hca.wa.gov

1-360-867-8486
https://www.hca.wa.gov/health-care-
services-supports/behavioral-health-
recovery/problem-gambling


	September Commission Packet
	Agenda
	Tab 1 minutes
	Tab 1 July Revised Minutes
	Tab 1 Lic Rpt 
	 Tab 1 non-profit Org.
	Tab 1 Nov meeting schedule
	Tab 1 dir rpt
	Tab 2 ARL
	Tab 3 PGTF



